

LAKE COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  
Office of Superintendent

**Lake County Office of Education Policy Updates**

**ISSUE**

The County Board of Education will review the following policies:

- BP/SP 0420 School Plans/Site Councils1
- AR 0420 School Plans/Site Councils
- BP 1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures
- AR 1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures
- BP 5131.2 Bullying
- BP 5148 Child Care and Development
- AR 5148 Child Care and Development
- BP 5148.2 Before/After School Programs
- AR 5148.2 Before/After School Programs
- BP 5148.3 Preschool/Early Childhood Education
- AR 5148.3 Preschool/Early Childhood Education
- BP 6163.4 Student Use of Technology
- E 6163.4 Student Use of Technology

**PREVIOUS ACTIVITY**

These policies were brought to the Board for a first reading on February 17, 2016.

**DISCUSSION**

CSBA has released policy updates. The attached policies reflect changes as recommended by CSBA. Superintendent Policies are for review only. Board Policies or combined Superintendent/Board Policies will be voted on.

**FISCAL, STAFFING AND FACILITIES ISSUES**

Not Addressed

**RECOMMENDATION**

Discussion item

**SCHOOL PLANS/SITE COUNCILS**

The County Board of Education and County Superintendent of Schools believes that comprehensive planning that is aligned with the district's local control and accountability plan (LCAP) is necessary at each school, in order to focus school improvement efforts on student academic achievement and facilitate the effective use of available resources. The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that school plans provide clear direction and identify cohesive strategies aligned with school and district goals. ~~For purpose of this policy and associated regulation, the term *district* may refer to the County Office of Education.~~

- (cf. 0000 - Vision)*
- (cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District)*
- (cf. 0400 - Comprehensive Plans)*
- (cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan)*

Each ~~district~~ LCOE school shall establish a school site council in accordance with Education Code 52852 and the accompanying administrative regulation to develop, review, and approve school plans.

For any school that participates in specified state and/or federal categorical programs, the school site council or other schoolwide advisory committee shall consolidate the plans required for those categorical programs into a single plan for student achievement (SPSA). (Education Code 64001)

**When required by law or determined to be a useful tool to accomplish LCOE and school goals school site councils and other school advisory groups shall develop comprehensive school plans designed to enhance student achievement at individual school sites**

- (cf. 0520.2 - Title I Program Improvement Schools)*
- (cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)*
- (cf. 1431 - Waivers)*
- (cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement)*
- (cf. 6171 - Title I Programs)*
- (cf. 6174 - Education for English Language Learners)*
- (cf. 6190 - Evaluation of the Instructional Program)*

As appropriate, a school may incorporate any other school program into the SPSA. (Education Code 64001)

The Superintendent or designee shall review each school's SPSA to ensure that it meets the content requirements for all programs included, is based on an analysis of current practices and student academic performance, and reasonably links improvement strategies to identified needs of the school and its students. He/she shall also ensure that specific actions included in the district's LCAP are consistent with the strategies identified in each school's SPSA.

The Board shall, at a regularly scheduled Board meeting, review and approve each school's SPSA and any subsequent material revisions affecting the academic programs for students participating in the categorical programs addressed in the SPSA. The Board shall certify that, to the extent allowable under federal law, the SPSA is consistent with ~~district~~ LCOE local improvement plans required as a condition of receiving federal funding. (Education Code 64001)

## SCHOOL PLANS/SITE COUNCILS (continued)

Whenever the Board does not approve a school's SPSA, it shall communicate its specific reasons for disapproval of the plan to the school site council or committee. The school site council or committee shall then revise and resubmit the SPSA to the Board for its approval. (Education Code 52855)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that school administrators and school site council members receive training on the roles and responsibilities of the site council.

There is no mention of school site block grants - should this be included - from old policy

### **School Site Block Grant**

Upon receipt of state funding for school site block grants, the County Superintendent shall allocate funds to schools on an equal per-pupil basis. (AB 1802, Sec. 43, Statutes of 2006)

The schools use of such funds allocated through this block grant shall be proposed by the school site council or if the school does not have a school site council, by a schoolwide advisory group or school support group. (AB 1802, Sec. 43, Statutes of 2006)

The school site council shall provide the County Superintendent or designee with a written proposal that includes the identified needs and how the funds will be used to enhance the educational program.

Before the funds are encumbered or expended the County Superintendent shall approve the site council's proposed use of the funds. If the County Superintendent does not approve the proposed use, he/she shall inform the school site council of the reasons for the disapproval and request the council review and revise its proposal. (AB 1802, Sec. 43, Statutes of 2006)

### *Legal Reference:*

#### EDUCATION CODE

52-53 *Designation of schools*

33133 *Information guide for school site councils*

35147 *Open meeting laws exceptions*

41540-41544 *Targeted instructional improvement block grants*

52060-52077 *Local control and accountability plan*

52176 *Advisory committees*

52852 *School site councils*

54000-54028 *Educationally Disadvantaged Youth Programs*

54425 *Advisory committees (compensatory education)*

56000-56867 *Special education*

64000 *Categorical programs included in consolidated application*

64001 *Single school plan for student achievement, consolidated application programs*

#### CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

3930-3937 *Compliance plans*

#### UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

6311 *Accountability, adequate yearly progress*

6312-6319 *Title I programs; plans*

6421-6472 *Programs for neglected, delinquent, and at-risk children and youth*

6601-6651 *Teacher and Principal Training and Recruitment program*  
6801-7014 *Limited English proficient and immigrant students*  
7101-7165 *Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities*  
7341-7355c *Rural Education Initiative*

*Management Resources:*

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS

*A Guide for Developing the Single Plan for Student Achievement: A Resource for the School Site Council, February 2014*

WEST ED PUBLICATIONS

*California Healthy Kids Survey*

*California School Climate Survey*

WEB SITES

*California Department of Education, Single Plan for Student Achievement:*

*<http://www.cde.ca.gov/nclb/sr/le/singleplan.asp>*

*U.S. Department of Education: <http://www.ed.gov>*

Policy  
adopted:

LAKE COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  
MARCH 2016

**SCHOOL PLANS/SITE COUNCILS**

**School Site Councils**

Each school shall have a school site council composed of the following: (Education Code 52852)

1. The principal
2. Teachers selected by the school's teachers
3. Other school personnel selected by the school's other personnel
4. Parent/guardian representatives, who may include parents/guardians of students attending the school and/or community members, selected by parents/guardians of students attending the school
5. If the school is a secondary school, students attending the school selected by other such students

Half of the school site council membership shall consist of school staff, the majority of whom shall be classroom teachers. For an elementary school site council, the remaining half shall be parent/guardian representatives. For a secondary school site council, the remaining half shall be equal numbers of parent/guardian representatives and students. (Education Code 52852)

A district **or LCOE** employee may serve as a parent/guardian representative on the school site council of the school his/her child attends, provided the employee does not work at that school. (Education Code 52852)

The bylaws of each school site council shall include the method of selecting members and officers, terms of office, responsibilities of council members, time commitment, and a policy of nondiscrimination.

School site councils may function on behalf of other committees in accordance with law. (Education Code 52176, 54425; 5 CCR 3932)

School site councils shall operate in accordance with procedural meeting requirements established in Education Code 35147.

*(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)*

**Single Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA)**

Any ~~district~~ **LCOE** school that shall participate in any state or federal categorical program specified in Education Code 64000 on an ongoing basis shall have a school site council which shall

**SCHOOL PLANS/SITE COUNCILS** (continued)

approve and annually review and update a single plan for student achievement (SPSA). If the school does not have a school site council, these responsibilities shall be fulfilled by a schoolwide advisory group or school support group conforming to the composition requirements of the school site council listed in the section "School Site Councils" above. (Education Code 64001)

*(cf. 1431 - Waivers)*

*(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement)*

*(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs)*

*(cf. 6174 - Education for English Language Learners)*

*(cf. 6184 - Continuation Education)*

The SPSA shall be developed with the review, advice, and certification of any applicable school advisory committees. (Education Code 64001)

Such groups may include, but are not limited to, a parent advisory committee established to review and comment on the district's local control and accountability plan (LCAP); advisory committees established for English learner and special education programs; Western Association of Schools and Colleges leadership teams; district or school liaison teams for schools identified for program improvement; and other committees established by the school or district.

*(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan)*

*(cf. 0520.2 - Title I Program Improvement Schools)*

*(cf. 6190 - Evaluation of the Instructional Program)*

The SPSA shall be aligned with the ~~district's~~ LCOE's LCAP and school goals for improving student achievement. School goals shall be based on an analysis of verifiable state data identified pursuant to law, and may consider any other data **voluntarily** developed by the ~~district~~ LCOE to measure student achievement. (Education Code 52062, 64001)

*(cf. 0500 - Accountability)*

*(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment)*

*(cf. 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests)*

*(cf. 6162.52 - High School Exit Examination)*

The SPSA shall, at a minimum: (Education Code 64001)

1. Address how funds provided to the school through specified categorical programs will be used to improve the academic performance of all students to the level of the performance goals established by law
2. Identify the means of evaluating the school's progress toward accomplishing those goals

**SCHOOL PLANS/SITE COUNCILS** (continued)

3. Identify how state and federal law governing the categorical programs will be implemented

In addition to meeting the requirements common to all applicable school plans, the SPSA shall address any content required by law for each individual categorical program in which the school participates.

In developing or revising the SPSA, the school site council or other schoolwide advisory group or school support group shall:

1. Analyze student achievement data. Using measures of student academic performance, the school shall identify significant patterns of low performance in particular content areas, student groups, and/or individual students and determine which data summaries to include in the plan as most informative and relevant to school goals.
2. Assess the effectiveness of the school's instructional program in relation to the analysis of student data.
3. Identify a limited number of achievement goals and key improvement strategies to achieve the goals. School goals shall reflect the needs identified at the school site while aligning with goals identified in federally required district plans. The school shall specify the student group(s) on which each goal is focused, the methods or practices that will be used to reach the goal, and the criteria that will be used to determine if the goal is achieved.
4. Define timelines, personnel responsible, proposed expenditures, and funding sources to implement the SPSA.

The school site council or other schoolwide group shall approve the proposed SPSA at a meeting for which public notice has been posted and then submit the SPSA to the ~~Governing~~ **County** Board for approval. (Education Code 35147, 64001)

The school site council or other schoolwide group shall regularly monitor the implementation and effectiveness of the SPSA and modify any activities that prove ineffective. At least once per year, the principal or designee shall evaluate results of improvement efforts and report to the Board, school site council, advisory committees, and other interested parties regarding progress toward school goals.

The school site council or other schoolwide group may amend the SPSA at any time. Any revisions that would substantively change the academic programs funded through the consolidated application shall be submitted to the Board for approval.

Regulation  
approved:

LAKE COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  
MARCH 2016

**UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES**

The **Lake** County Board of Education and **Lake** County Superintendent of Schools recognize that the COE has the primary responsibility to ensure compliance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations governing educational programs. The Board encourages the early, informal resolution of complaints whenever possible and appropriate. To resolve complaints which cannot be resolved through such informal process, the Board shall adopt the uniform system of complaint processes specified in 5 CCR 4600-4670 and the accompanying administrative regulation. ~~For purpose of this policy and associated regulation, the term *district* may refer to the County Office of Education.~~

The ~~district's~~ **LCOE's** uniform complaint procedures (UCP) shall be used to investigate and resolve the following complaints:

1. Any complaint alleging ~~district~~ **LCOE** violation of applicable state or federal law or regulations governing adult education programs, consolidated categorical aid programs, migrant education, career technical and technical education and training programs, child care and development programs, child nutrition programs, and special education programs (5 CCR 4610)

*(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals)*  
*(cf. 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance)*  
*(cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting)*  
*(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development)*  
*(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program)*  
*(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs)*  
*(cf. 6174 - Education for English Language Learners)*  
*(cf. 6175 - Migrant Education Program)*  
*(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education)*  
*(cf. 6178.1 - Work-Based Learning)*  
*(cf. 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program)*  
*(cf. 6200 - Adult Education)*

2. Any complaint alleging the occurrence of unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying) against any person, based on his/her actual or perceived characteristics of race or ethnicity, color, ancestry, nationality, national origin, ethnic group identification, age, religion, marital or parental status, physical or mental disability, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, or genetic information, or any other characteristic identified in Education Code 200 or 220, Government Code 11135, or Penal Code 422.55, or based on his/her association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics, in ~~district~~ **LCOE** programs and activities, including, but not limited to, those funded directly by or that receive or benefit from any state financial assistance (5 CCR 4610)

*(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)*  
*(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment)*  
*(cf. 4031 - Complaints Concerning Discrimination in Employment)*  
*(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)*  
*(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment)*

**UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES** (continued)

3. Any complaint alleging ~~district~~ LCOE violation of the prohibition against requiring students to pay fees, deposits, or other charges for participation in educational activities (5 CCR 4610)

*(cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges)*

*(cf. 3320 - Claims and Actions Against the District)*

4. Any complaint alleging that the ~~district~~ LCOE has not complied with legal requirements related to the implementation of the local control and accountability plan (Education Code 52075)

*(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan)*

5. Any complaint alleging retaliation against a complainant or other participant in the complaint process or anyone who has acted to uncover or report a violation subject to this policy

6. Any other complaint as specified in a ~~district~~ LCOE policy

The Board recognizes that alternative dispute resolution (ADR) can, depending on the nature of the allegations, offer a process to reach a resolution to the complaint that is agreeable to all parties. One type of ADR is mediation, which shall be offered to resolve complaints that involve more than one student and no adult. However, mediation shall not be offered or used to resolve any complaint involving sexual assault or where there is a reasonable risk that a party to the mediation would feel compelled to participate. The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the use of ADR is consistent with state and federal laws and regulations.

The ~~district~~ LCOE shall protect all complainants from retaliation. In investigating complaints, the confidentiality of the parties involved shall be protected as required by law. As appropriate for any complaint alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the Superintendent or designee shall keep confidential the identity of the complainant and/or the subject of the complaint, if he/she is different from the complainant, as long as the integrity of the complaint process is maintained.

*(cf. 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23 - Unauthorized Release of Confidential/Privileged Information)*

*(cf. 5125 - Student Records)*

*(cf. 9011 - Disclosure of Confidential/Privileged Information)*

When an allegation that is not subject to the UCP is included in a UCP complaint, the ~~district~~ LCOE shall refer the non-UCP allegation to the appropriate staff or agency and shall investigate and, if appropriate, resolve the UCP-related allegation(s) through the ~~district's~~ LCOE's UCP.

**UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES** (continued)

The Superintendent or designee shall provide training to district LCOE staff to ensure awareness and knowledge of current law and related requirements, including the steps and timelines specified in this policy and the accompanying administrative regulation.

*(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)*

*(cf. 4231 - Staff Development)*

*(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)*

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records of all UCP complaints and the investigations of those complaints. All such records shall be destroyed in accordance with applicable state law and district policy.

*(cf. 3580 - District Records)*

**Non-UCP Complaints**

The following complaints shall not be subject to the district's LCOE's UCP but shall be referred to the specified agency: (5 CCR 4611)

1. Any complaint alleging child abuse or neglect shall be referred to the County Department of Social Services, the County Protective Services Division, and the appropriate law enforcement agency.
2. Any complaint alleging health and safety violations by a child development program shall, for licensed facilities, be referred to Department of Social Services and shall, for licensing-exempt facilities, be referred to the appropriate Child Development regional administrator.
3. Any complaint alleging employment discrimination shall be sent to the California Department of Fair Employment and Housing and the compliance officer shall notify the complainant by first class mail of the transfer.
4. Any complaint alleging fraud shall be referred to the California Department of Education.

In addition, the district's Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures, AR 1312.4, shall be used to investigate and resolve any complaint related to sufficiency of textbooks or instructional materials, emergency or urgent facilities conditions that pose a threat to the health or safety of students or staff, or teacher vacancies and misassignments. (Education Code 35186)

*(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures)*

*Legal Reference: (see next page)*

**UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES** (continued)

*Legal Reference:*

EDUCATION CODE

200-262.4 *Prohibition of discrimination*  
8200-8498 *Child care and development programs*  
8500-8538 *Adult basic education*  
18100-18203 *School libraries*  
32289 *School safety plan, uniform complaint procedures*  
35186 *Williams uniform complaint procedures*  
48985 *Notices in language other than English*  
49010-49013 *Student fees*  
49060-49079 *Student records*  
49490-49590 *Child nutrition programs*  
52060-52077 *Local control and accountability plan, especially*  
52075 *Complaint for lack of compliance with local control and accountability plan requirements*  
52160-52178 *Bilingual education programs*  
52300-52490 *Career technical education*  
52500-52616.24 *Adult schools*  
52800-52870 *School-based program coordination*  
54400-54425 *Compensatory education programs*  
54440-54445 *Migrant education*  
54460-54529 *Compensatory education programs*  
56000-56867 *Special education programs*  
59000-59300 *Special schools and centers*  
64000-64001 *Consolidated application process*

GOVERNMENT CODE

11135 *Nondiscrimination in programs or activities funded by state*  
12900-12996 *Fair Employment and Housing Act*

PENAL CODE

422.55 *Hate crime; definition*  
422.6 *Interference with constitutional right or privilege*

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

3080 *Application of section*  
4600-4687 *Uniform complaint procedures*  
4900-4965 *Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs*

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

1221 *Application of laws*  
1232g *Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act*  
1681-1688 *Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972*  
6301-6577 *Title I basic programs*  
6801-6871 *Title III language instruction for limited English proficient and immigrant students*  
7101-7184 *Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities Act*  
7201-7283g *Title V promoting informed parental choice and innovative programs*  
7301-7372 *Title V rural and low-income school programs*  
12101-12213 *Title II equal opportunity for individuals with disabilities*

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29

794 *Section 504 of Rehabilitation Act of 1973*

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42

2000d-2000e-17 *Title VI and Title VII Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended*  
2000h-2-2000h-6 *Title IX of the Civil Rights Act of 1964*

Legal Reference continued: (see next page)

BP 1312.3(e)

## **UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES (continued)**

Legal Reference: (continued)

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28

35.107 Nondiscrimination on basis of disability; complaints

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34

99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act

100.3 Prohibition of discrimination on basis of race, color or national origin

104.7 Designation of responsible employee for Section 504

106.8 Designation of responsible employee for Title IX

106.9 Notification of nondiscrimination on basis of sex

110.25 Notification of nondiscrimination on the basis of age

Management Resources:

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS

Dear Colleague Letter: Title IX Coordinators, April 2015

Questions and Answers on Title IX and Sexual Violence, April 2014

Dear Colleague Letter: Bullying of Students with Disabilities, August 2013

Dear Colleague Letter: Sexual Violence, April 2011

Dear Colleague Letter: Harassment and Bullying, October 2010

Revised Sexual Harassment Guidance: Harassment of Students by School Employees, Other Students, or Third Parties, January 2001

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE PUBLICATIONS

Guidance to Federal Financial Assistance Recipients Regarding Title VI Prohibition Against National Origin Discrimination Affecting Limited English Proficient Persons, 2002

WEB SITES

CSBA: <http://www.csba.org>

California Department of Education: <http://www.cde.ca.gov>

Family Policy Compliance Office: <http://familypolicy.ed.gov>

U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights: <http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr>

U.S. Department of Justice: <http://www.justice.gov>

Policy  
adopted:

LAKE COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  
MARCH 2016

**UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES**

Except as the County Board of Education or County Superintendent of Schools may otherwise specifically provide in other ~~district~~ LCOE policies, these general uniform complaint procedures (UCP) shall be used to investigate and resolve only the complaints specified in BP 1312.3.

- (cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees)*
- (cf. 1312.2 - Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials)*
- (cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures)*
- (cf. 4031 - Complaints Concerning Discrimination in Employment)*

**Compliance Officers**

The ~~district~~ LCOE designates the individual(s) identified below as the employee(s) responsible for coordinating the ~~district's~~ LCOE's response to complaints and for complying with state and federal civil rights laws. The individual(s) also serve as the compliance officer(s) specified in AR 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment as the responsible employee to handle complaints regarding sex discrimination. The individual(s) shall receive and coordinate the investigation of complaints and shall ensure district compliance with law.

- (cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)*
- (cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment)*

Assistant Superintendent  
1152 South Main Street  
Lakeport, CA 95453  
(707)262-4100

The compliance officer who receives a complaint may assign another compliance officer to investigate and resolve the complaint. The compliance officer shall promptly notify the complainant if another compliance officer is assigned to the complaint.

In no instance shall a compliance officer be assigned to a complaint in which he/she has a bias or conflict of interest that would prohibit him/her from fairly investigating or resolving the complaint. Any complaint against or implicating a compliance officer may be filed with the Superintendent or designee.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees assigned to investigate and resolve complaints receive training and are knowledgeable about the laws and programs at issue in the complaints to which they are assigned. Training provided to such designated employees shall include current state and federal laws and regulations governing the program, applicable processes for investigating and resolving complaints including those involving alleged unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, **correct spacing**

**UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES** (continued)

or bullying), applicable standards for reaching decisions on complaints, and appropriate corrective measures. Designated employees may have access to legal counsel as determined by the Superintendent or designee.

*(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)*

The compliance officer or, if necessary, any appropriate administrator shall determine whether interim measures are necessary during and pending the results of an investigation. If interim measures are determined to be necessary, the compliance officer or the administrator shall consult with the Superintendent, the Superintendent's designee, or, if appropriate, the site principal to implement, if possible, one or more of the interim measures. The interim measures may remain in place until the compliance officer determines that they are no longer necessary or until the ~~district~~ LCOE issues its final written decision, whichever occurs first.

**Notifications**

The ~~district's~~ LCOE's UCP policy and administrative regulation shall be posted in all ~~district~~ LCOE schools and offices, including staff lounges and student government meeting rooms. (Education Code 234.1)

The Superintendent or designee shall annually provide written notification of the ~~district's~~ LCOE's UCP, including information regarding unlawful student fees and local control and accountability plan (LCAP) requirements, to students, employees, parents/guardians, the ~~district~~ LCOE advisory committee, school advisory committees, appropriate private school officials or representatives, and other interested parties. (Education Code 262.3, 49013, 52075; 5 CCR 4622)

- (cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils)*
- (cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan)*
- (cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)*
- (cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges)*
- (cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications)*
- (cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)*

The annual notification and complete contact information of the compliance officer(s) may be posted on the ~~district~~ LCOE web site and, if available, provided through ~~district~~ LCOE-supported social media.

- (cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites)*
- (cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media)*

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all students and parents/guardians, including students and parents/guardians with limited English proficiency, have access to the relevant information provided in the ~~district's~~ LCOE's policy, regulation, forms, and notices concerning the UCP.

**UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES** (continued)

If 15 percent or more of students enrolled in a particular ~~district~~ LCOE school speak a single primary language other than English, the ~~district's~~ LCOE's policy, regulation, forms, and notices concerning the UCP shall be translated into that language, in accordance with Education Code 234.1 and 48985. In all other instances, the ~~district~~ LCOE shall ensure meaningful access to all relevant UCP information for parents/guardians with limited English proficiency.

The notice shall:

1. Identify the person(s), position(s), or unit(s) responsible for receiving complaints
2. Advise the complainant of any civil law remedies that may be available to him/her under state or federal antidiscrimination laws, if applicable
3. Advise the complainant of the appeal process, including, if applicable, the complainant's right to take a complaint directly to the California Department of Education (CDE) or to pursue remedies before civil courts or other public agencies, such as the U.S. Department of Education's Office for Civil Rights (OCR) in cases involving unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying).
4. Include statements that:
  - a. The ~~district~~ LCOE has the primary responsibility to ensure compliance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations governing educational programs.
  - b. The complaint review shall be completed within 60 calendar days from the date of receipt of the complaint unless the complainant agrees in writing to an extension of the timeline.
  - c. A complaint alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying) must be filed not later than six months from the date it occurred, or six months from the date the complainant first obtained knowledge of the facts of the alleged unlawful discrimination. The time for filing may be extended for up to 90 days by the Superintendent or designee for good cause upon written request by the complainant setting forth the reasons for the extension.
  - d. A student enrolled in a public school shall not be required to pay a fee for his/her participation in an educational activity that constitutes an integral fundamental part of the ~~district's~~ LCOE's educational program, including curricular and extracurricular activities.

**UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES** (continued)

- e. The Board is required to adopt and annually update the LCAP in a manner that includes meaningful engagement of parents/guardians, students, and other stakeholders in the development and/or review of the LCAP.
- f. The complainant has a right to appeal the ~~district's~~ LCOE's decision to the CDE by filing a written appeal within 15 calendar days of receiving the ~~district's~~ LCOE's decision.
- g. The appeal to the CDE must include a copy of the complaint filed with the ~~district~~ LCOE and a copy of the ~~district's~~ LCOE's decision.
- h. Copies of the ~~district's~~ LCOE's UCP are available free of charge.

**District Responsibilities**

All UCP-related complaints shall be investigated and resolved within 60 calendar days of the ~~district's~~ LCOE's receipt of the complaint unless the complainant agrees in writing to an extension of the timeline. (5 CCR 4631)

The compliance officer shall maintain a record of each complaint and subsequent related actions, including steps taken during the investigation and all information required for compliance with 5 CCR 4631 and 4633.

All parties involved in the allegations shall be notified when a complaint is filed and when a decision or ruling is made. However, the compliance officer shall keep all complaints or allegations of retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying) confidential except when disclosure is necessary to carry out the investigation, take subsequent corrective action, conduct ongoing monitoring, or maintain the integrity of the process. (5 CCR 4630, 4964)

**Filing of Complaints**

The complaint shall be presented to the compliance officer who shall maintain a log of complaints received, providing each with a code number and a date stamp.

All complaints shall be filed in accordance with the following:

- 1. A written complaint alleging ~~district~~ LCOE violation of applicable state or federal law or regulations governing adult education programs, consolidated categorical aid programs, migrant education, career technical and technical education and training programs, child care and development programs, child nutrition programs, and special education programs may be filed by any individual, public agency, or organization. (5 CCR 4630)

## UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES (continued)

2. Any complaint alleging noncompliance with law regarding the prohibition against requiring students to pay student fees, deposits, and charges or any requirement related to the LCAP may be filed anonymously if the complaint provides evidence, or information leading to evidence, to support an allegation of noncompliance. A complaint about a violation of the prohibition against the charging of unlawful student fees may be filed with the principal of the school. However, any such complaint shall be filed no later than one year from the date the alleged violation occurred. (Education Code 49013, 52075; 5 CCR 4630)
3. A complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying) may be filed only by a person who alleges that he/she personally suffered the unlawful discrimination or by a person who believes that an individual or any specific class of individuals has been subjected to it. The complaint shall be initiated no later than six months from the date when the alleged unlawful discrimination occurred, or six months from the date when the complainant first obtained knowledge of the facts of the alleged unlawful discrimination. The time for filing may be extended for up to 90 days by the Superintendent or designee for good cause upon written request by the complainant setting forth the reasons for the extension. (5 CCR 4630)
4. When a complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying) is filed anonymously, the compliance officer shall pursue an investigation or other response as appropriate, depending on the specificity and reliability of the information provided and the seriousness of the allegation.
5. When the complainant or alleged victim of unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying) requests confidentiality, the compliance officer shall inform him/her that the request may limit the ~~district's~~ LCOE's ability to investigate the conduct or take other necessary action. When honoring a request for confidentiality, the ~~district~~ LCOE shall nevertheless take all reasonable steps to investigate and resolve/respond to the complaint consistent with the request.
6. If a complainant is unable to put a complaint in writing due to conditions such as a disability or illiteracy, ~~district~~ LCOE staff shall assist him/her in the filing of the complaint. (5 CCR 4600)

### Mediation

Within three business days after the compliance officer receives the complaint, he/she may informally discuss with all the parties the possibility of using mediation. Mediation shall be offered to resolve complaints that involve more than one student and no adult. However,

**UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES** (continued)

mediation shall not be offered or used to resolve any complaint involving an allegation of sexual assault or where there is a reasonable risk that a party to the mediation would feel compelled to participate. If the parties agree to mediation, the compliance officer shall make all arrangements for this process.

Before initiating the mediation of a complaint alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the compliance officer shall ensure that all parties agree to make the mediator a party to relevant confidential information. The compliance officer shall also notify all parties of the right to end the informal process at any time.

If the mediation process does not resolve the problem within the parameters of law, the compliance officer shall proceed with his/her investigation of the complaint.

The use of mediation shall not extend the ~~district's~~ LCOE's timelines for investigating and resolving the complaint unless the complainant agrees in writing to such an extension of time. If mediation is successful and the complaint is withdrawn, then the ~~district~~ LCOE shall take only the actions agreed to through the mediation. If mediation is unsuccessful, the ~~district~~ LCOE shall then continue with subsequent steps specified in this administrative regulation.

**Investigation of Complaint**

Within 10 business days after the compliance officer receives the complaint, the compliance officer shall begin an investigation into the complaint.

Within one business day of initiating the investigation, the compliance officer shall provide the complainant and/or his/her representative with the opportunity to present the information contained in the complaint to the compliance officer and shall notify the complainant and/or his/her representative of the opportunity to present the compliance officer with any evidence, or information leading to evidence, to support the allegations in the complaint. Such evidence or information may be presented at any time during the investigation.

In conducting the investigation, the compliance officer shall collect all available documents and review all available records, notes, or statements related to the complaint, including any additional evidence or information received from the parties during the course of the investigation. He/she shall individually interview all available witnesses with information pertinent to the complaint, and may visit any reasonably accessible location where the relevant actions are alleged to have taken place. To investigate a complaint alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the compliance officer shall interview the alleged victim(s), any alleged offenders, and other relevant witnesses privately, separately, and in a confidential manner. As necessary, additional staff or legal counsel may conduct or support the investigation.

**UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES** (continued)

A complainant's refusal to provide the ~~district's~~ LCOE's investigator with documents or other evidence related to the allegations in the complaint, failure or refusal to cooperate in the investigation, or engagement in any other obstruction of the investigation may result in the dismissal of the complaint because of a lack of evidence to support the allegation. (5 CCR 4631)

In accordance with law, the ~~district~~ LCOE shall provide the investigator with access to records and other information related to the allegation in the complaint and shall not in any way obstruct the investigation. Failure or refusal of the ~~district~~ LCOE to cooperate in the investigation may result in a finding based on evidence collected that a violation has occurred and in the imposition of a remedy in favor of the complainant. (5 CCR 4631)

The compliance officer shall apply a "preponderance of the evidence" standard in determining the veracity of the factual allegations in a complaint. This standard is met if the allegation is more likely to be true than not.

**Report of Findings**

**OPTION 1:**

Unless extended by written agreement with the complainant, the compliance officer shall prepare and send to the complainant a written report, as described in the section "Final Written Decision" below, within 60 calendar days of the ~~district's~~ LCOE's receipt of the complaint. (5 CCR 4631)

## UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES (continued)

### Final Written Decision

The ~~district's~~ LCOE's decision on how it will resolve the complaint shall be in writing and shall be sent to the complainant. (5 CCR 4631)

In consultation with ~~district~~ LCOE's legal counsel, information about the relevant part of a decision may be communicated to a victim who is not the complainant and to other parties that may be involved in implementing the decision or affected by the complaint, as long as the privacy of the parties is protected.

If the complaint involves a limited-English-proficient student or parent/guardian and the student involved attends a school at which 15 percent or more of the students speak a single primary language other than English, then the decision shall also be translated into that language. In all other instances, the ~~district~~ LCOE shall ensure meaningful access to all relevant information for parents/guardians with limited English proficiency.

For all complaints, the decision shall include: (5 CCR 4631)

1. The findings of fact based on the evidence gathered. In reaching a factual determination, the following factors may be taken into account:
  - a. Statements made by any witnesses
  - b. The relative credibility of the individuals involved
  - c. How the complaining individual reacted to the incident
  - d. Any documentary or other evidence relating to the alleged conduct
  - e. Past instances of similar conduct by any alleged offenders
  - f. Past false allegations made by the complainant
2. The conclusion(s) of law
3. Disposition of the complaint
4. Rationale for such disposition

For complaints of retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the disposition of the complaint shall include a determination for each allegation as to whether retaliation or unlawful discrimination has occurred.

**UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES** (continued)

The determination of whether a hostile environment exists may involve consideration of the following:

- a. How the misconduct affected one or more students' education
  - b. The type, frequency, and duration of the misconduct
  - c. The relationship between the alleged victim(s) and offender(s)
  - d. The number of persons engaged in the conduct and at whom the conduct was directed
  - e. The size of the school, location of the incidents, and context in which they occurred
  - f. Other incidents at the school involving different individuals
5. Corrective action(s), including any actions that have been taken or will be taken to address the allegations in the complaint and including, with respect to a student fees complaint, a remedy that comports with Education Code 49013 and 5 CCR 4600

For complaints of unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the notice may, as required by law, include:

- a. The corrective actions imposed on the individual found to have engaged in the conduct that relate directly to the subject of the complaint
  - b. Individual remedies offered or provided to the subject of the complaint
  - c. Systemic measures the school has taken to eliminate a hostile environment and prevent recurrence
6. Notice of the complainant's right to appeal the ~~district's~~ **LCOE's** decision within 15 calendar days to the CDE and procedures to be followed for initiating such an appeal

The decision may also include follow-up procedures to prevent recurrence or retaliation and for reporting any subsequent problems.

For complaints alleging unlawful discrimination based on state law (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, and bullying), the decision shall also include a notice to the complainant that:

**UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES** (continued)

1. He/she may pursue available civil law remedies outside of the ~~district's~~ **LCOE's** complaint procedures, including seeking assistance from mediation centers or public/private interest attorneys, 60 calendar days after the filing of an appeal with the CDE. (Education Code 262.3)
2. The 60 days moratorium does not apply to complaints seeking injunctive relief in state courts or to discrimination complaints based on federal law. (Education Code 262.3)
3. Complaints alleging discrimination based on race, color, national origin, sex, gender, disability, or age may also be filed with the U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights at [www.ed.gov/ocr](http://www.ed.gov/ocr) within 180 days of the alleged discrimination.

**Corrective Actions**

When a complaint is found to have merit, the compliance officer shall adopt any appropriate corrective action permitted by law. Appropriate corrective actions that focus on the larger school or ~~district~~ **LCOE** environment may include, but are not limited to, actions to reinforce ~~district~~ **LCOE** policies; training for faculty, staff, and students; updates to school policies; or school climate surveys.

For complaints involving retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), appropriate corrective actions that focus on the victim may include, but are not limited to, the following:

1. Counseling
2. Academic support
3. Health services
4. Assignment of an escort to allow the victim to move safely about campus
5. Information regarding available resources and how to report similar incidents or retaliation
6. Separation of the victim from any other individuals involved, provided the separation does not penalize the victim
7. Restorative justice
8. Follow-up inquiries to ensure that the conduct has stopped and there has been no retaliation

**UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES** (continued)

9. Determination of whether any past actions of the victim that resulted in discipline were related to the treatment the victim received and described in the complaint

For complaints involving retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), appropriate corrective actions that focus on a student offender may include, but are not limited to, the following:

1. Transfer from a class or school as permitted by law
2. Parent/guardian conference
3. Education regarding the impact of the conduct on others
4. Positive behavior support
5. Referral to a student success team
6. Denial of participation in extracurricular or co-curricular activities or other privileges as permitted by law
7. Disciplinary action, such as suspension or expulsion, as permitted by law

The ~~district~~ LCOE may also consider training and other interventions for the larger school community to ensure that students, staff, and parents/guardians understand the types of behavior that constitute unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), that the ~~district~~ LCOE does not tolerate it, and how to report and respond to it.

If a complaint alleging noncompliance with the laws regarding student fees, deposits, and other charges or any requirement related to the LCAP is found to have merit, the ~~district~~ LCOE shall provide a remedy to all affected students and parents/guardians subject to procedures established by regulation of the State Board of Education. (Education Code 49013, 52075)

For complaints alleging noncompliance with the laws regarding student fees, the ~~district~~ LCOE shall attempt in good faith, by engaging in reasonable efforts, to identify and fully reimburse all affected students and parents/guardians who paid the unlawful student fees within one year prior to the filing of the complaint. (Education Code 49013; 5 CCR 4600)

**Appeals to the California Department of Education**

Any complainant who is dissatisfied with the ~~district's~~ LCOE's final written decision may file an appeal in writing with the CDE within 15 calendar days of receiving the ~~district's~~ LCOE's decision. (Education Code 49013, 52075; 5 CCR 4632)

**UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES** (continued)

The complainant shall specify the basis for the appeal of the decision and whether the facts are incorrect and/or the law has been misapplied. The appeal shall be accompanied by a copy of the locally filed complaint and a copy of the district's decision. (5 CCR 4632)

Upon notification by the CDE that the complainant has appealed the ~~district's~~ LCOE's decision, the Superintendent or designee shall forward the following documents to the CDE: (5 CCR 4633)

1. A copy of the original complaint
2. A copy of the written decision
3. A summary of the nature and extent of the investigation conducted by the ~~district~~ LCOE if not covered by the decision
4. A copy of the investigation file including, but not limited to, all notes, interviews, and documents submitted by the parties and gathered by the investigator
5. A report of any action taken to resolve the complaint
6. A copy of the ~~district's~~ LCOE's uniform complaint procedures
7. Other relevant information requested by the CDE

Regulation  
approved:

LAKE COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  
MARCH 2016

**NB OUR EXISTING E 1312 SHOULD ALSO BE INCLUDED**

Except that this sentence on the Policy Guide Sheet be added to the First Paragraph of E 1312 reflecting New Office for Civil Rights guidance.

" LCOE will also use web sites and social media to post nondiscrimination notices, policies, and procedures, and contact information for compliance officer(s)."

**Students**

BP 5131.2(a)

## **BULLYING**

The Lake County Board of Education recognizes the harmful effects of bullying on student learning and school attendance and desires to provide safe school environments that protect students from physical and emotional harm. ~~District~~ LCOE employees shall establish student safety as a high priority and shall not tolerate bullying of any student.

No individual or group shall, through physical, written, verbal, or other means, harass, sexually harass, threaten, intimidate, retaliate, cyberbully, cause bodily injury to, or commit hate violence against any student or school personnel.

*(cf. 5131 - Conduct)*

*(cf. 5136 - Gangs)*

*(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)*

*(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment)*

*(cf. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior)*

*Cyberbullying* includes the creation or transmission of harassing communications, direct threats, or other harmful texts, sounds, or images on the Internet, social media, or other technologies using a telephone, computer, or any wireless communication device. Cyberbullying also includes breaking into another person's electronic account and assuming that person's identity in order to damage that person's reputation.

*(cf. 5145.2 - Freedom of Speech/Expression)*

Strategies for addressing bullying in ~~district~~ LCOE schools shall be developed with involvement of key stakeholders, including students, parents/guardians, and staff, and may be incorporated into the comprehensive safety plan, the local control and accountability plan, and other applicable ~~district~~ LCOE and school plans.

*(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils)*

*(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan)*

*(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan)*

*(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)*

*(cf. 1400 - Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies and the Schools)*

*(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement)*

As appropriate, the Superintendent or designee may collaborate with law enforcement, courts, social services, mental health services, other agencies, and community organizations in the development and implementation of joint strategies to promote safety in schools and the community and to provide services for alleged victims and perpetrators of bullying.

*(cf. 1020 - Youth Services)*

### **Bullying Prevention**

To the extent possible, ~~district~~ LCOE schools shall focus on the prevention of bullying by establishing clear rules for student conduct and implementing strategies to promote a

**BULLYING** (continued)

positive, collaborative school climate. Students shall be informed, through student handbooks and other appropriate means, of ~~district~~ LCOE and school rules related to bullying, mechanisms available for reporting incidents or threats, and the consequences for engaging in bullying.

*(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate)*

As appropriate, the ~~district~~ LCOE shall provide students with instruction, in the classroom or other educational settings, that promotes effective communication and conflict resolution skills, social skills, character/values education, respect for cultural and individual differences, self-esteem development, assertiveness skills, and appropriate online behavior.

*(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education)*  
*(cf. 6142.94 - History-Social Science Instruction)*  
*(cf. 6163.4 - Student Use of Technology)*

Staff shall receive related professional development, including information about early warning signs of harassing/intimidating behaviors and effective response.

*(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)*  
*(cf. 4231 - Staff Development)*  
*(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)*

Based on an assessment of bullying incidents at school, the Superintendent or designee may increase supervision and security in areas where bullying most often occurs, such as classrooms, playgrounds, hallways, restrooms, and cafeterias.

**Intervention**

Students are encouraged to notify school staff when they are being bullied or suspect that another student is being victimized. In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall develop means for students to report threats or incidents confidentially and anonymously.

School staff who witness an act of bullying shall immediately intervene to stop the incident when it is safe to do so. (Education Code 234.1)

When appropriate based on the severity or pervasiveness of the bullying, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the parents/guardians of victims and perpetrators and may contact law enforcement.

The Superintendent, principal, or principal's designee may refer a victim, witness, perpetrator, or other student affected by an act of bullying to a school counselor, school psychologist, social worker, child welfare attendance personnel, school nurse, or other school

## **BULLYING** (continued)

support service personnel for case management, counseling, and/or participation in a restorative justice program as appropriate. (Education Code 48900.9)

*(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services)*

### **Reporting and Filing of Complaints**

Any student, parent/guardian, or other individual who believes that a student has been subjected to bullying or who has witnessed bullying may report the incident to a teacher, the principal, a compliance officer, or any other available school employee. Within one business day of receiving such a report, a staff member shall notify the principal of the report, whether or not a uniform complaint is filed. In addition, any school employee who observes an incident of bullying involving a student shall, within one business day, report his/her observation to the principal or a ~~district~~ **LCOE** compliance officer, whether or not the alleged victim files a complaint.

Within two business days of receiving a report of bullying, the principal shall notify the ~~district~~ **LCOE** compliance officer identified in AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures.

*(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures)*

When the circumstances involve cyberbullying, individuals with information about the activity shall be encouraged to save and print any electronic or digital messages that they feel constitute cyberbullying and to notify a teacher, the principal, or other employee so that the matter may be investigated. When a student uses a social networking site or service to bully or harass another student, the Superintendent or designee may file a request with the networking site or service to suspend the privileges of the student and to have the material removed.

When a report of bullying is submitted, the principal or a ~~district~~ **LCOE** compliance officer shall inform the student or parent/guardian of the right to file a formal written complaint in accordance with AR 1312.3. The student who is the alleged victim of the bullying shall be given an opportunity to describe the incident, identify witnesses who may have relevant information, and provide other evidence of bullying.

### **Investigation and Resolution of Complaints**

Any complaint of bullying shall be investigated and, if determined to be discriminatory, resolved in accordance with law and the ~~district's~~ **LCOE's** uniform complaint procedures specified in AR 1312.3.

**BULLYING** (continued)

If, during the investigation, it is determined that a complaint is about nondiscriminatory bullying, the principal or designee shall inform the complainant and shall take all necessary actions to resolve the complaint.

**Discipline**

Corrective actions for a student who commits an act of bullying of any type may include counseling, behavioral intervention and education, and, if the behavior is severe or pervasive as defined in Education Code 48900, may include suspension or expulsion in accordance with ~~district~~ **LCOE** policies and regulations.

- (cf. 5138 - Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation)*
- (cf. 5144 - Discipline)*
- (cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)*
- (cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))*
- (cf. 6159.4 - Behavioral Interventions for Special Education Students)*

Any employee who permits or engages in bullying or retaliation related to bullying shall be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal.

- (cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)*
- (cf. 4119.21/4219.21/4319.21 - Professional Standards)*
- (cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)*

*Legal Reference: (see next page)*

**BULLYING** (continued)

*Legal Reference:*

EDUCATION CODE

200-262.4 *Prohibition of discrimination*  
32282 *Comprehensive safety plan*  
32283.5 *Bullying; online training*  
35181 *Governing board policy on responsibilities of students*  
35291-35291.5 *Rules*  
48900-48925 *Suspension or expulsion*  
48985 *Translation of notices*  
52060-52077 *Local control and accountability plan*

PENAL CODE

422.55 *Definition of hate crime*  
647 *Use of camera or other instrument to invade person's privacy; misdemeanor*  
647.7 *Use of camera or other instrument to invade person's privacy; punishment*  
653.2 *Electronic communication devices, threats to safety*

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

4600-4687 *Uniform complaint procedures*

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 47

254 *Universal service discounts (e-rate)*

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28

35.107 *Nondiscrimination on basis of disability; complaints*

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34

104.7 *Designation of responsible employee for Section 504*  
106.8 *Designation of responsible employee for Title IX*  
110.25 *Notification of nondiscrimination on the basis of age*

COURT DECISIONS

*Wynar v. Douglas County School District*, (2013) 728 F.3d 1062  
*J.C. v. Beverly Hills Unified School District*, (2010) 711 F.Supp.2d 1094  
*Lavine v. Blaine School District*, (2002) 279 F.3d 719

*Management Resources: (see next page)*

**BULLYING** (continued)

*Management Resources:*

CSBA PUBLICATIONS

Final Guidance: AB 1266, Transgender and Gender Nonconforming Students, Privacy, Programs, Activities & Facilities, Legal Guidance, March 2014

Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for Transgender and Gender-Nonconforming Students, Policy Brief, February 2014Addressing the Conditions of Children: Focus on Bullying, Governance Brief, December 2012

Safe Schools: Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success, 2011

Building Healthy Communities: A School Leaders Guide to Collaboration and Community Engagement, 2009

Cyberbullying: Policy Considerations for Boards, Policy Brief, July 2007

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS

Health Education Content Standards for California Public Schools: Kindergarten Through Grade Twelve, 2008

Bullying at School, 2003

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS

Dear Colleague Letter: Bullying of Students with Disabilities, August 2013

Dear Colleague Letter: Harassment and Bullying, October 2010

WEB SITES

CSBA: <http://www.csba.org>

California Department of Education, Safe Schools Office: <http://www.cde.ca.gov/lss>

Common Sense Media: <http://www.common Sense Media.org>

National School Safety Center: <http://www.schoolsafety.us>

ON[the]LINE, digital citizenship resources: <http://www.onthelineca.org>

U.S. Department of Education: <http://www.ed.gov>

**CHILD CARE AND DEVELOPMENT**

The County Board of Education desires to provide child care and development services which meet the developmental needs of children and offer a convenient child care alternative for parents/guardians in the community. ~~For purpose of this policy and associated regulation, the term district may refer to the County Office of Education.~~

- (cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs)*
- (cf. 5148.3 - Preschool/Early Childhood Education)*
- (cf. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education)*
- (cf. 6175 - Migrant Education Program)*

The Superintendent shall work cooperatively with the local child care and development planning council, public and private agencies, parents/guardians, and other community members to assess child care needs in the community, establish program priorities, obtain ongoing feedback on program quality and inform parents/guardians about child care options. (FROM OLD POLICY)

- (cf 1020 - Youth Services)*
- (cf 1400 - Relations Between Other Government Agencies and Schools)*
- (cf 1700 - Relations Between Private Industry and School) ( IN OUR OLD POLICY)*

The Board shall enter into a contract with the California Department of Education (CDE) for the provision of child care and development services by the LCOE.

- (cf. 3312 - Contracts)*

The ~~district~~ LCOE shall work cooperatively with the local child care and development planning council, public and private agencies, parents/guardians, and other community members to assess child care needs in the community, establish program priorities, obtain ongoing feedback on program quality, and supply information about child care options.

- (cf. 1020 - Youth Services)*
- (cf. 1400 - Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies and the Schools)*
- (cf. 1700 - Relations Between Private Industry and the Schools)*

The Board shall approve for the ~~district's~~ LCOE's child care and development program a written philosophical statement, goals, and objectives that reflect the cultural and linguistic characteristics of the families to be served and address the program components specified in 5 CCR 18272-18281 and the accompanying administrative regulation. (5 CCR 18271)

- (cf. 0000 - Vision)*
- (cf. 0100 - Philosophy)*
- (cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District)*

## **Eligibility and Enrollment**

Child care admissions policies and procedures shall be in writing and available to the public. Such policies and procedures shall include criteria designating those children whose needs can be met by the child care center's program and services, the ages of children who will be accepted, program activities, any supplementary services provided, any field trip provisions, any transportation arrangements, food service provisions, and health examination requirements. (5 CCR 18105; 22 CCR 101218)

*(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)*

*(cf. 3540 - Transportation)*

*(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program)*

*(cf. 5141.22 - Infectious Diseases)*

*(cf. 5141.3 - Health Examinations)*

*(cf. 5141.31 - Immunizations)*

CONTINUE WITH p33

**CHILD CARE AND DEVELOPMENT** (continued)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that subsidized child care is provided to eligible families to the extent that state and/or federal funding is available and shall establish enrollment priorities in accordance with Education Code 8263 and 5 CCR 18106.

To the extent that space is available after the enrollment of children who are eligible for subsidized services, priority for admissions shall be given to ~~district~~ LCOE students, children of ~~district~~ LCOE students, and children of ~~district~~ LCOE employees.

*(cf. 5111.1 - District Residency)*

*(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students)*

**Staffing**

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that individuals working in child care and development programs have the necessary qualifications and have satisfied all legal requirements.

*(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance)*

*(cf. 4112.2 - Certification)*

*(cf. 4112.4/4212.4/4312.4 - Health Examinations)*

*(cf. 4112.5/4212.5/4312.5 - Criminal Record Check)*

*(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)*

*(cf. 4231 - Staff Development)*

*(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)*

**Facilities**

Upon recommendation of the Superintendent or designee, the Board may approve any of the following for the provision of child care and development services:

1. The use of existing ~~district~~ LCOE facilities that have capacity
2. Renovation or improvement of ~~district~~ LCOE facilities to make them suitable for such services
3. Purchase of relocatable child care facilities
4. Inclusion of child care facilities in any new construction
5. Agreement with a public agency or community organization for the use of community facilities

*(cf. 1330.1 - Joint Use Agreements)*

*(cf. 7110 - Facilities Master Plan)*

## **CHILD CARE AND DEVELOPMENT** (continued)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that facilities used for child care services meet all applicable health and safety standards. (5 CCR 18020; 22 CCR 101238-101239.2)

### **Complaints**

For a licensed child care center, any complaint alleging health and safety violations shall be referred to the California Department of Social Services. For a license-exempt facility, such complaints shall be referred to the appropriate Child Development regional administrator. Any other alleged violation of state or federal laws governing child care and development programs shall be investigated and resolved using the ~~district's~~ LCOE's procedures in BP/AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures.

*(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures)*

### **Program Evaluation**

The Superintendent or designee shall annually conduct an evaluation of the ~~district's~~ LCOE's child care and development services in accordance with state requirements. The evaluation report shall be submitted to the Board and the CDE along with an action plan which establishes program goals and objectives for the coming year and addresses any areas identified as needing improvement. (5 CCR 18279-18281)

*(cf. 0500 - Accountability)*

*Legal Reference: (see next page)*

**CHILD CARE AND DEVELOPMENT** (continued)

*Legal Reference:*

EDUCATION CODE

8200-8499.10 *Child Care and Development Services Act, especially:*  
8200-8209 *General provisions for child care and development services*  
8210-8216 *Resource and referral program*  
8220-8226 *Alternative payment program*  
8230-8233 *Migrant child care and development program*  
8235-8239 *California state preschool program*  
8240-8244 *General child care programs*  
8250-8252 *Programs for children with special needs*  
8263 *Eligibility and priorities for subsidized child development services*  
8263.3 *Disenrollment of families due to reduced funding levels*  
8263.4 *Enrollment of students ages 11-12 years*  
8273-8273.3 *Fees*  
8278.3 *Child Care Facilities Revolving Fund*  
8360-8370 *Personnel qualifications*  
8400-8409 *Contracts*  
8482-8484.65 *After-school education and safety program*  
8484.7-8484.8 *21st Century community learning centers*  
8493-8498 *Facilities*  
8499-8499.7 *Local planning councils*  
49540-49546 *Child care food program*  
49570 *National School Lunch program*  
56244 *Staff development funding*

HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE

1596.70-1596.895 *California Child Day Care Act*  
1596.90-1597.21 *Day care centers*  
120325-120380 *Immunization requirements*

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

4610-4687 *Uniform complaint procedures*  
18000-18434 *Child care and development programs, especially:*  
18012-18122 *General requirements*  
18180-18192 *Federal and state migrant programs*  
18210-18213 *Severely handicapped program*  
18220-18231 *Alternative payment program*  
18240-18248 *Resource and referral program*  
18270-18281 *Program quality, accountability*  
18290-18292 *Staffing ratios*  
18295 *Waiver of qualifications for site supervisor*  
18300-18308 *Appeals and dispute resolution*  
80105-80125 *Commission on Teacher Credentialing, child care and development permits*

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 22

101151-101239.2 *General requirements, licensed child care centers, especially:*  
101151-101163 *Licensing and application procedures*  
101212-101231 *Continuing requirements*  
101237-101239.2 *Facilities and equipment*

*Legal Reference continued: (see next page)*

**CHILD CARE AND DEVELOPMENT (continued)**

*Legal Reference: (continued)*

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42

1751-1769 School lunch programs

9831-9852 Head Start programs

9858-9858q Child care and development block grant

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 7

210.1-210.31 National School Lunch program

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 45

98.2-98.93 Child care and development fund

COURT DECISIONS

CBS Inc. v. The Superior Court of Los Angeles County, State Department of Social Services, (2001) 91 Cal.App.4th 892

*Management Resources:*

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS

14-03a Revised Child Care and Development Fee Schedule, Management Bulletin, September 2014

Uniform Complaint Procedures, 2014

12-07 Disenrollment due to Maximum Reimbursable Amount Reduction, Management Bulletin, July 2012

Keeping Children Healthy in California's Child Care Environments: Recommendations to Improve Nutrition and Increase Physical Activity, 2010

WEB SITES

CSBA: <http://www.csba.org>

California Association for the Education of Young Children: <http://www.caeyc.org>

California Child Development Administrators Association: <http://www.ccdaa.org>

California Department of Education, Early Education and Support Division: <http://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/cd>

California Department of Education, Early Education Management Bulletins:

<http://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/cd/ci/allmbs.asp>

California Department of Social Services, Licensing Information: <http://cclid.ca.gov/PG492.htm>

California Head Start Association: <http://caheadstart.org>

California School-Age Consortium: <http://calsac.org>

Commission on Teacher Credentialing: <http://www.ctc.ca.gov>

National Association for the Education of Young Children: <http://www.naeyc.org>

U.S. Department of Education: <http://www.ed.gov>

Policy  
adopted:

LAKE COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  
MARCH 2016

**CHILD CARE AND DEVELOPMENT**

**Licensing**

All ~~district~~ **LCOE** child care and development services shall be licensed by the California Department of Social Services, unless exempted pursuant to Health and Safety Code 1596.792 or 22 CCR 101158.

The license shall be posted in a prominent, publicly accessible location in the facility. (Health and Safety Code 1596.8555)

Licensed child care centers shall be subject to the requirements of Health and Safety Code 1596.70-1597.21, 22 CCR 101151-101239.2, and, when applicable, 22 CCR 101451-101539.

**Program Components**

The ~~district's~~ **LCOE's** child care and development program shall include the following components:

1. A developmental profile recording each child's physical, cognitive, social, and emotional development which shall be used to plan and conduct developmentally and age-appropriate activities (Education Code 8203.5; 5 CCR 18272)

Program staff shall complete the "Desired Results Developmental Profile," available from the California Department of Education (CDE), for each child who is enrolled in the program for at least 10 hours per week and for any child with disabilities regardless of the number of hours enrolled. The profile shall be completed within 60 days of enrollment and at least once every six months thereafter for children of all ages. (Education Code 8203.5; 5 CCR 18270.5, 18272)

2. An educational program which complies with 5 CCR 18273, including the provision of services that are developmentally, linguistically, and culturally appropriate and inclusive of children with special needs

*(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs)*  
*(cf. 5148.3 - Preschool/Early Childhood Education)*  
*(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program)*  
*(cf. 6164.4 - Identification of Individuals for Special Education)*  
*(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504)*  
*(cf. 6174 - Education for English Language Learners)*

3. A staff development program which complies with 5 CCR 18274

*(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)*  
*(cf. 4231 - Staff Development)*  
*(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)*

**CHILD CARE AND DEVELOPMENT** (continued)

4. Parent/guardian involvement and education which comply with 5 CCR 18275 and involve parents/guardians through an orientation, at least two individual conferences per year, meetings with program staff, an advisory committee, participation in daily activities, and information regarding their child's progress

*(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement)*

5. A health and social services component which complies with 5 CCR 18276 and includes referrals to appropriate community agencies as needed

*(cf. 1020 - Youth Services)*

*(cf. 1400 - Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies and the Schools)*

*(cf. 5141 - Health Care and Emergencies)*

*(cf. 5141.23 - Asthma Management)*

*(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services)*

6. A community involvement component which complies with 5 CCR 18277

7. A nutrition component which ensures that children in the program are provided nutritious meals, beverages, and snacks that meet state and federal standards and have access to drinking water throughout the day, including at meal times (Health and Safety Code 1596.808; 5 CCR 18278; 42 USC 1766)

*(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program)*

*(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness)*

*(cf. 5141.27 - Food Allergies/Special Dietary Needs)*

8. An annual plan for program evaluation which conforms with the state's "Desired Results for Children and Families" system and includes, but is not limited to, a self-evaluation, parent survey, and environment rating scale using forms provided by the CDE (5 CCR 18270.5, 18279, 18280)

*(cf. 0500 - Accountability)*

9. Programs that promote age-appropriate structured and unstructured opportunities for physical activity and that limit the amount of time spent in sedentary activities to an appropriate level

**Staffing Ratios**

The district's LCOE's child care and development program shall maintain at least the minimum adult-child and teacher-child ratios specified in 5 CCR 18290-18292 based on the ages of the children served

**CHILD CARE AND DEVELOPMENT** (continued)**Eligibility and Enrollment**

The **LCOE's** subsidized child care and development services may be available to infants and children through age 12 years and to individuals with disabilities through age 21 years in accordance with their individualized education program and Education Code 8208. (Education Code 8208, 8263.4; 5 CCR 18089, 18407, 18422)

Eligible families shall be those who document both an eligibility basis and a need for care, as follows: (Education Code 8263)

1. The family is eligible for subsidized services on the basis of being a current aid recipient, income eligible, or homeless and/or the family's children are recipients of protective services or have been identified as being, or at risk of being, abused, neglected, or exploited.
2. The family has a need for child care based on the unavailability of the parents/guardians to care for and supervise their children for some portion of the day because they are either working, seeking employment, participating in vocational education and training programs, seeking permanent housing for family stability, or temporarily or permanently incapacitated. Alternatively, a family satisfies the need requirement if the child is identified by a legal, medical, social services agency, or emergency shelter as a recipient of child protective services or as being, or at risk of being, neglected, abused, or exploited.

The Superintendent or designee shall consult the county's centralized eligibility list, when available, or shall maintain a ~~district~~ **LCOE** waiting list in accordance with admission priorities. As vacancies occur, applicants shall be contacted in order of their priority. (5 CCR 18106)

First priority for enrollment shall be given to neglected or abused children who are recipients of child protective services, or children who are at risk of being neglected or abused, upon written referral from a legal, medical, or social services agency. If unable to enroll a child in this category, the ~~district~~ **LCOE** shall refer the child's parent/guardian to local resource and referral services so that services for the child can be located. (Education Code 8263)

Second priority for enrollment shall be given to families who are income eligible, as defined in Education Code 8263.1. Families with the lowest gross monthly income in relation to family size shall be admitted first. If two or more families are in the same priority in relation to income, the family that has a child with disabilities shall be admitted first or, if there is no child with disabilities, the family that has been on the waiting list for the longest time shall be admitted first. (Education Code 8263, 8263.1)

**CHILD CARE AND DEVELOPMENT** (continued)

The ~~district~~ **LCOE** shall allow eligible children ages 11-12 years to combine enrollment in a before-school or after-school program with subsidized child care services during the time that the before-school or after-school program does not operate. Children ages 11-12 years, except for children with disabilities, shall be eligible for subsidized child care services only for the portion of care needed that is not available in a before-school or after-school program. (Education Code 8263.4)

After all children eligible for subsidized services have been enrolled, the ~~district~~ **LCOE** may enroll children in accordance with the priorities established by the ~~Governing~~ **County** Board.

The ~~district's~~ **LCOE's** decision to approve or deny services shall be communicated to the parent/guardian through a written Notice of Action mailed or delivered within 30 days from the date the application is signed by the parent/guardian. (5 CCR 18094, 18118)

*(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)*

Subsequently, the Superintendent or designee shall mail or deliver a Notice of Action to a parent/guardian at least 14 calendar days before any intended change in services, including, but not limited to, an increase or decrease in fees, an increase or decrease in the amount of services, or termination of services, due to any of the following circumstances: (5 CCR 18095, 18119)

1. A determination during recertification or update of the application that the need or eligibility requirements are no longer being met or the fee or amount of service needs to be modified
2. Failure of the parent/guardian to document the family's need or eligibility after the ~~district~~ **LCOE** requested such documentation in writing
3. An indication by the parent/guardian that he/she no longer wants the service
4. The death of a parent/guardian or child
5. The conclusion of a limited-term agreement, provided that the parent/guardian has been informed in writing of the date that the services would terminate

The Superintendent or designee shall establish and maintain a basic data file for each family receiving child care and development services containing the completed and signed application for services, documentation used to determine the child's eligibility and need, and copies of all Notices of Action. (5 CCR 18081, 18095)

**CHILD CARE AND DEVELOPMENT** (continued)**Fees and Charges**

Except when offering a program which is prohibited by law from charging any fees, the Superintendent or designee may charge fees for services according to the fee schedule established by the Superintendent of Public Instruction, the actual cost of services, or the maximum daily/hourly rate specified in the contract, whichever is least. (Education Code 8250, 8263, 8273, 8273.1, 8273.2, 8447; 5 CCR 18078, 18108-18110)

However, no fee shall be charged to a family that is receiving CalWORKS cash aid, an income-eligible family whose child is enrolled in a part-day California State Preschool Program, or a family whose income level, in relation to family size, is less than the first entry in the fee schedule. (Education Code 8273.1; 5 CCR 18110)

In addition, any family receiving child care on the basis of having a child who is a recipient of child protective services, or having a certification by a county child welfare agency that child care services continue to be necessary, may be exempt from these fees for up to 12 months. Any family whose child is receiving child care on the basis of being at risk of abuse, neglect, or exploitation may be exempt from these fees for up to three months, unless the family becomes eligible based on receipt of child protective services or certification of need by a county child welfare agency. The cumulative period of exemption for these purposes shall not exceed 12 months. (Education Code 8273.1)

Fees shall be assessed at initial enrollment and reassessed when a family is recertified or experiences a change in status. Fees shall be considered delinquent after seven days from the date that fees are due. Parents/guardians shall be notified in the event that fees are delinquent. If a reasonable plan for payment of the delinquent fees has not been provided by the parents/guardians, services shall be terminated if all delinquent fees are not paid within two weeks of such notification. Parents/guardians shall receive a copy of the ~~district's~~ **LCOE's** regulations regarding fee collection at the time of initial enrollment into the program. (Education Code 8273; 5 CCR 18082, 18114, 18115)

The Superintendent or designee shall establish a process which involves parents/guardians in determining whether to require parents/guardians to provide diapers. This process shall also be used to determine whether and how much to charge parents/guardians for field trip expenses, within the limit specified in law. A child shall not be denied participation in a field trip due to the parent/guardian's inability or refusal to pay the fee, and no adverse action shall be taken against a parent/guardian for that inability or refusal. (Education Code 8273.3)

**Disenrollment**

When necessary due to a reduction in state reimbursements, families shall be disenrolled from subsidized child care and development services in the following order: (Education Code 8263.3)

**CHILD CARE AND DEVELOPMENT** (continued)

1. Families with the highest income in relation to family size shall be disenrolled first.
2. If two or more families have the same income ranking, children without disabilities who have been enrolled in child care services the longest shall be disenrolled first. After all children without disabilities have been disenrolled, children with disabilities shall be disenrolled, with those who have been enrolled in child care services the longest being disenrolled first.
3. Families whose children are receiving child protective services or are at risk of neglect, abuse, or exploitation, regardless of family income, shall be disenrolled last.

Whenever the ~~district~~ LCOE issues a notice to the families who will be disenrolled due to funding reduction, a parent/guardian may appeal the decision only on the grounds that the factors used to determine the family's disenrollment are incorrect. He/she shall submit the appeal within 14 calendar days of receipt of the notice, or within 19 calendar days if the notice was mailed.

The Superintendent or designee shall review the appeal and notify the parent/guardian, in writing, of the ~~district's~~ LCOE's final decision within 10 calendar days of receiving the appeal request. Services shall continue to be provided pending the appeal decision.

**Health Examination**

A physical examination and evaluation, including age-appropriate immunization, shall be required prior to or within six weeks of enrollment, unless the parent/guardian submits a letter stating that such examination is contrary to his/her religious beliefs. (Education Code 8263)

*(cf. 5141.22 - Infectious Diseases)*

*(cf. 5141.3 - Health Examinations)*

*(cf. 5141.31 - Immunizations)*

**Attendance**

Sign-in and sign-out sheets shall be used daily for all children for attendance accounting purposes. Attendance records shall include verification of excused absences, including the child's name, date(s) of absence, specific reason for absence, and signature of parent/guardian or ~~district~~ LCOE representative. (5 CCR 18065, 18066)

Absences shall be excused for the following reasons:

1. Illness or quarantine of the child or of the parent/guardian (Education Code 8208)

**CHILD CARE AND DEVELOPMENT** (continued)

## 2. Family emergency (Education Code 8208)

A family emergency shall be considered to exist when unforeseen circumstances cause the need for immediate action, such as may occur in the event of a natural disaster or when a member of the child's immediate family dies, has an accident, or is required to appear in court.

## 3. Time spent with a parent/guardian or other relative as required by a court of law (Education Code 8208)

## 4. Time spent with a parent/guardian or other relative which is clearly in the best interest of the child (Education Code 8208)

An absence shall be considered to be in the best interest of the child when the time is spent with the child's parent/guardian or other relative for reasons deemed justifiable by the program coordinator or site supervisor.

Except for children who are recipients of child protective services or are at risk of abuse or neglect, excused absences in the best interest of the child shall be limited to 10 days during the contract period. (5 CCR 18066)

Any absence due to a reason other than any of those stated above, or without the required verification, shall be considered an unexcused absence. After three unexcused absences during the year, the program coordinator or site supervisor shall notify the parents/guardians. Children who continue to have excessive unexcused absences may be removed from the program at the discretion of the program coordinator in order to accommodate other families on the waiting list for admission.

Parents/guardians shall be notified of the policies and procedures related to excused and unexcused absences for child care and development services. (5 CCR 18066)

**Rights of Parents/Guardians**

At the time a child is accepted into a licensed child care and development center, the child's parent/guardian or authorized representative shall be notified of his/her rights as specified in 22 CCR 101218.1, including, but not limited to, the right to enter and inspect the child care facility and the right to be informed, upon request, of the name and type of association to the center of any adult who has been granted a criminal record exemption. (Health and Safety Code 1596.857; 22 CCR 101218.1)

The written notice of parent/guardian rights also shall be permanently posted within the facility in a location accessible to parents/guardians. Notwithstanding these rights, access to

**CHILD CARE AND DEVELOPMENT** (continued)

the facility may be denied to an adult whose behavior presents a risk to children present in the facility or to noncustodial parents/guardians when so requested by the responsible parent/guardian. (Health and Safety Code 1596.857)

**Records**

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records of enrollment, attendance, types of families served, income received from all families participating in the district's LCOE's child care and development program, and any other records required by the CDE.

*(cf. 3580 - District Records)*

*(cf. 5125 - Student Records)*

(NB WE NO LONGER NEED THE AR 5148.1 IN OUR CURRENT POLICY WHICH ADDRESSES CHILD CARE SERVICES FOR PARENTING STUDENTS)

Regulation  
approved:

LAKE COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  
MARCH 2016

**BEFORE/AFTER SCHOOL PROGRAMS**

The County Board of Education desires to provide before-school and/or after-school enrichment programs that support the regular education program and provide safe alternatives for students. In order to increase academic achievement of participating students, the content of such programs shall be coordinated with the ~~district's~~ LCOE's vision and goals for student learning, its curriculum, and ~~district~~ LCOE and state academic standards. ~~For purpose of this policy and associated regulation, the term *district* may refer to the County Office of Education.~~

(cf. 0000 - Vision)  
 (cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District)  
 (cf. 5147 - Dropout Prevention)  
 (cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development)  
 (cf. 6011 - Academic Standards)  
 (cf. 6176 - Weekend/Saturday Classes)  
 (cf. 6177 - Summer Learning Programs)  
 (cf. 6179 - Supplemental Instruction)

The ~~district's~~ LCOE program shall be planned through a collaborative process that includes parents/guardians, students, and representatives of participating schools, governmental agencies including city and county parks and recreation departments, local law enforcement, community organizations, and, if appropriate, the private sector. (Education Code 8422, 8482.5)

(cf. 1020 - Youth Services)  
 (cf. 1400 - Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies and the Schools)  
 (cf. 1700 - Relations Between Private Industry and the Schools)  
 (cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement)

The establishment of any program shall be approved by the Board and the principal of each participating school. (Education Code 8421, 8482.3)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all staff who directly supervise students in the ~~district's~~ LCOE's before-school and/or after-school program possess appropriate knowledge and experience. As needed, staff and volunteers shall receive ongoing training related to their job responsibilities. (Education Code 8483.4)  
 (cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance)  
 (cf. 4131 - Staff Development)  
 (cf. 4222 - Teacher Aides/Paraprofessionals)  
 (cf. 4231 - Staff Development)  
 (cf. 4331 - Staff Development)

A volunteer shall submit to a criminal background check pursuant to Education Code 45125. He/she shall also submit current information to the LCOE and shall update that information whenever the information changes. (Education Code 35021.30) (WAS LEFT OUT OF POLICY)

The program shall include academic and enrichment elements in accordance with law and administrative regulation. In addition, the program may include support services that reinforce the educational component and promote student health and well-being.

(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan)  
 (cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program)  
 (cf. 5030 - Student Wellness)  
 (cf. 5131.6 - Alcohol and Other Drugs)  
 (cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity)

**BEFORE/AFTER SCHOOL PROGRAMS** (continued)

A fee may be charged to participating families based on the actual cost of services. The fee may be waived or subsidized based on economic need or other critical needs.

Eligible students ages 11-12 years shall be placed in a before-school or after-school program, if and when available, rather than subsidized child care and development services. During the time that the before-school or after-school program does not operate, students ages 11-12 years may be provided the option of enrolling in child care and development services in accordance with the priorities established in AR 5148 - Child Care and Development. (Education Code 8263.4)

*(cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges)*

The Board and the Superintendent or designee shall and report monitor **and report** student participation rates **or on an semi-annual basis** and shall identify multiple measures that shall be used to evaluate program effectiveness **based on standards developed by the CDE**. Such measures may include, but are not limited to, student outcome data; program self-assessments; feedback from staff, participating students, and parents/guardians; and observations of program activities.

*(cf. 0500 - Accountability)*

Every three years, the program shall review its after-school program plan, including program goals, program content, and outcome measures. Documentation of the program plan shall be maintained for a minimum of five years. (Education Code 8482.3)

*(cf. 3580 - District Records)*

*Legal Reference: (see next page)*

**BEFORE/AFTER SCHOOL PROGRAMS (continued)**

*Legal Reference:*

EDUCATION CODE

8263 *Eligibility and priorities for subsidized child development services*  
8263.4 *Enrollment of students ages 11-12 years*  
8273.1 *Family fees, exemptions*  
8350-8359.1 *Programs for CalWORKS recipients*  
8360-8370 *Personnel qualifications*  
8420-8428 *21st Century After-School Program for Teens*  
8482-8484.65 *After School Education and Safety Program*  
8484.7-8484.9 *21st Century Community Learning Centers*  
8490-8490.7 *Distinguished After School Health Recognition Program*  
17264 *New construction; accommodation of before- and after-school programs*  
35021.3 *After-school physical recreation instructors*  
45125 *Criminal record check*  
45330 *Paraprofessionals; instructional aides*  
35340-45349 *Paraprofessionals; instructional aides*  
49024 *Criminal background check; Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate*  
49430-49434 *Nutrition standards*  
49553 *Free or reduced-price meals*  
69530-69547.9 *Cal Grant program*  
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20  
6314 *Title I schoolwide programs*  
6319 *Program improvement*  
7171-7176 *21st Century Community Learning Centers*  
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42  
1766-1766a *Child and Adult Care Food Program*  
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 7  
226.17 *Nutrition standards*

*Management Resources:*

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS

*A Crosswalk Between the Quality Standards for Expanded Learning and Program Quality Assessment Tools, 2014*

*Quality Standards for Expanded Learning in California: Creating and Implementing a Shared Vision of Quality, 2014*

*California After School Physical Activity Guidelines, 2009*

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS

*21st Century Community Learning Centers, Nonregulatory Guidance, February 2003*

WEB SITES

CSBA: <http://www.csba.org>

California Department of Education, Before and After School: <http://www.cde.ca.gov/lb/ba>

California Healthy Kids Survey: <https://chks.wested.org>

California School-Age Consortium: <http://calsac.org>

Commission on Teacher Credentialing: <http://www.ctc.ca.gov>

Partnership for Children and Youth: <http://partnerforchildren.org>

U.S. Department of Agriculture: <http://www.fns.usda.gov/cnd/care/afterschool.htm>

U.S. Department of Education: <http://www.ed.gov>

Policy  
adopted:

LAKE COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  
MARCH 2016

**BEFORE/AFTER SCHOOL PROGRAMS**

**Grades K-9**

The ~~district's~~ **LCOE's** After School Education and Safety (ASES) program or 21st Century Community Learning Center (21st CCLC) program may serve students in grades K-9. (Education Code 8482.3, 8484.8)

Consistent with state funding priorities, the ~~district~~ **LCOE** shall, to the extent feasible, give priority to establishing ASES programs that serve students in schools with the highest percentage of students eligible for free and reduced-price meals.

*(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals)*

The ~~district's~~ **LCOE's** 21st CCLC program shall primarily serve students in Title I schoolwide programs or serve a high percentage of students from low-income families. (Education Code 8484.8; 20 USC 7173)

*(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs)*

Consistent with federal funding priorities, the ~~district~~ **LCOE** shall, to the extent feasible, give priority to establishing 21st CCLC programs in schools that are identified for program improvement under 20 USC 6316 and/or programs that will provide year-round expanded learning opportunities.

*(cf. 0520.2 - Title I Program Improvement Schools)*

The ~~district's~~ **LCOE's** ASES and 21st CCLC program(s) shall be operated in accordance with the following:

1. Program Elements

- a. The program shall include an educational and literacy element in which tutoring or homework assistance is provided in language arts, mathematics, history and social science, computer training, and/or science. (Education Code 8482.3)

*(cf. 6142.91 - Reading/Language Arts Instruction)*

*(cf. 6142.92 - Mathematics Instruction)*

*(cf. 6142.93 - Science Instruction)*

*(cf. 6154 - Homework/Makeup Work)*

*(cf. 6163.4 - Student Use of Technology)*

- b. The program shall include an educational enrichment element which may include, but is not limited to, fine arts, career technical education, recreation, technology, physical fitness, and prevention activities. (Education Code 8482.3)

**BEFORE/AFTER SCHOOL PROGRAMS** (continued)

*(cf. 5131.6 - Alcohol and Other Drugs)*  
*(cf. 5131.62 - Tobacco)*  
*(cf. 6142.6 - Visual and Performing Arts)*  
*(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity)*  
*(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education)*

2. Nutrition

- a. If snacks or meals are made available in the program, they shall conform to state nutrition standards specified in Education Code 49430-49434 or 42 USC 1766 as applicable. (Education Code 8482.3; 42 USC 1766-1766a; 7 CFR 226.17)
- b. The ~~district's~~ **LCOE's** before-school program shall offer a breakfast meal as described in Education Code 49553 for all program participants. (Education Code 8483.1)

*(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program)*  
*(cf. 3554 - Other Food Sales)*  
*(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness)*

3. Location of Program

- a. The program may be offered at one or multiple school sites and/or at an easily available and accessible off-campus facility. (Education Code 8482.3)
- b. When there is a significant barrier to student participation in either the before-school or after-school component of a program at the school of attendance, the ~~district~~ **LCOE** may, with the approval of the Superintendent of Public Instruction, provide services at another school site. A significant barrier includes either of the following: (Education Code 8482.8)

- (1) Fewer than 20 students participating in the program component
- (2) Extreme transportation constraints, including, but not limited to, desegregation busing, busing for magnet or open enrollment schools, or student dependence on public transportation

In such cases, the ~~district~~ **LCOE** shall arrange for safe, supervised transportation between school sites; ensure communication among staff in the regular school program, staff in the before-school or after-school program, and parents/guardians; and ensure alignment of the educational and literacy elements with the regular school program of participating students. (Education Code 8482.8)

*(cf. 3540 - Transportation)*

**BEFORE/AFTER SCHOOL PROGRAMS** (continued)

4. Staffing

- a. All staff members who directly supervise students shall, at a minimum, meet the qualifications for an instructional aide. (Education Code 8483.4; 20 USC 6319)

*(cf. 4222 - Teacher Aides/Paraprofessionals)*

- b. All program staff and volunteers shall be subject to the health screening and fingerprint clearance requirements in law and Board policy. (Education Code 8483.4)

*(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance)*

*(cf. 4112.4/4212.4/4312.4 - Health Examinations)*

*(cf. 4112.5/4212.5/4312.5 - Criminal Record Check)*

- c. The student-to-staff ratio shall be no more than 20 to 1. (Education Code 8483.4)

5. Hours of Operation

- a. A before-school program shall not operate for less than one and one-half hours per regular school day. (Education Code 8483.1)
- b. An after-school program shall begin immediately upon the conclusion of the regular school day and shall operate a minimum of 15 hours per week and at least until 6 p.m. on every regular school day. (Education Code 8483)

6. Admissions

- a. Every student attending a school operating a program is eligible to participate in the program, subject to program capacity. (Education Code 8482.6)

*(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)*

- b. If the number of students wishing to participate in the program exceeds program capacity, students shall be selected for enrollment based on the following guidelines:
  - (1) Priority for enrollment of middle or junior high school students shall be given to students who attend daily. (Education Code 8483, 8483.1)

**BEFORE/AFTER SCHOOL PROGRAMS** (continued)

- (2) Priority for enrollment shall be given to students identified as in need of academic remediation or support in accordance with Board policy or administrative regulations.

*(cf. 6179 - Supplemental Instruction)*

- (3) Any remaining capacity shall be filled by students selected at random.
- (4) A waiting list shall be established to accommodate additional students if space becomes available.

## 7. Attendance/Early Release

- a. Each student admitted into a ~~district~~ LCOE program shall be expected to attend the full number of hours that the program is in operation every day that he/she participates.
- b. When necessary, a student's parent/guardian may request, in writing, that the Superintendent or designee approve the reasonable late daily arrival of his/her child for the before-school program or the reasonable early daily release of his/her child from the after-school program. The Superintendent or designee shall not approve such a request if the student would be attending less than one-half of the daily program hours.

## 8. Summer/Intersession/Vacation Programs

- a. A before-school program operating during summer, intersession, and/or vacation days shall be offered for a minimum of two hours per day. An after-school program offered during summer, intersession, and/or vacation days may be operated for either three hours or six hours per day in accordance with Education Code 8483.76. When both before-school and after-school programs are offered for the same students on such days, they shall be operated for a minimum of four and one-half hours per day. (Education Code 8483, 8483.1, 8483.2, 8483.76)
- b. A program offered during summer, intersession, and/or vacation periods may open eligibility to every student attending a school in the ~~district~~ county, with priority for enrollment given to students enrolled in the school that received the grant. (Education Code 8483.76)
- c. To address the needs of students and school closures, the program may be conducted at an off-site location or an alternate school site. The program shall notify the California Department of Education (CDE) of the change of location and shall include a plan to provide safe transportation pursuant to Education Code 8484.6. (Education Code 8483.76)

**BEFORE/AFTER SCHOOL PROGRAMS** (continued)

- d. Any program operating for six hours per day shall provide at least one nutritionally adequate free or reduced-price meal to each eligible student during each program day. (Education Code 8483.76)
- e. For any program operating six hours per day, ~~district~~ **LCOE** procedures pertaining to student attendance and early release as specified in item #7 above shall apply. (Education Code 8483.76)

*(cf. 6177 - Summer Learning Programs)*

**BEFORE/AFTER SCHOOL PROGRAMS** (continued)

**Volunteers**

The Superintendent or designee may establish a registry of volunteer after-school physical recreation instructors and other before-school and after-school program volunteers. (Education Code 35021.3)

To be included in the registry, a volunteer shall submit to a criminal background check pursuant to Education Code 45125. He/she also shall submit current contact information to the ~~district~~ **LCOE** and shall update that information whenever the information changes. (Education Code 35021.3)

The Superintendent or designee may use a volunteer registered with the ~~district~~ **LCOE** or may select another person to provide physical recreation to students after school hours or to provide other services. (Education Code 35021.3)

**Reports**

The Superintendent or designee shall annually submit to the CDE outcome-based data, including, but not limited to: (Education Code 8427, 8482.3, 8484)

- 1. For participating students, school day attendance on an annual basis and program attendance on a semi-annual basis
- 2. Evidence of a program quality improvement process that is data driven and based on CDE program quality standards

*(cf. 0500 - Accountability)*

Regulation  
approved:

LAKE COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  
MARCH 2016

**PRESCHOOL/EARLY CHILDHOOD EDUCATION**

The County Board of Education recognizes that high-quality preschool experiences help children ages 3-4 years to develop knowledge, skills, abilities, and attributes necessary for a successful transition into the elementary education program. Early education programs should provide developmentally appropriate activities in a safe, adequately supervised, and cognitively rich environment. ~~For purpose of this policy and associated regulation, the term *district* may refer to the County Office of Education.~~

**Collaboration with Community Programs**

The Superintendent or designee shall collaborate with the local child care and development planning council, other public agencies, organizations, ~~the county office of education~~ school districts, and/or private preschool providers to assess the availability of preschool programs in the community and the extent to which the community's preschool needs are being met. The Board encourages the development of a comprehensive ~~districtwide and/or~~ countywide and/or districtwide plan to increase children's access to high-quality preschool programs.

- (cf. 1020 - Youth Services)*
- (cf. 1400 - Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies and the Schools)*
- (cf. 1700 - Relations Between Private Industry and the Schools)*
- (cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development)*

The Superintendent or designee shall provide information about preschool options in the community to parents/guardians upon request.

**~~District~~ LCOE's Preschool Programs**

When the Board determines that it is feasible, the ~~district~~ LCOE may contract with the California Department of Education (CDE) to provide preschool services in facilities at or near district schools.

The Board shall approve for the ~~district's~~ LCOE's preschool program a written philosophical statement, goals, and objectives that reflect the cultural and linguistic characteristics of the families to be served and address the program components specified in 5 CCR 18272-18281 and the accompanying administrative regulation. (5 CCR 18271)

The Board shall set priorities for establishing or expanding services as resources become available, giving consideration to the benefits of providing early education programs for at-risk children and/or children residing in the attendance areas of the lowest performing district schools.

- (cf. 0520.2 - Title I Program Improvement Schools)*
- (cf. 6171 - Title I Programs)*

On a case-by-case basis, the Board shall determine whether the ~~district~~ LCOE shall directly administer a preschool program or contract with a public or private provider to offer such a program.

**PRESCHOOL/EARLY CHILDHOOD EDUCATION** (continued)

Facilities for preschool classrooms shall be addressed in the ~~district's~~ LCOE's facilities master plan, including an assessment as to whether adequate and appropriate space exists on school sites. As necessary, the Superintendent or designee shall provide information to the Board regarding facilities financing options for preschool classrooms and/or facilities available through partnering organizations or agencies.

*(cf. 1330.1 - Joint Use Agreements)*

*(cf. 7110 - Facilities Master Plan)*

*(cf. 7210 - Facilities Financing)*

Because parents/guardians are essential partners in supporting the development of their children, the Superintendent or designee shall involve them in program planning.

*(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities)*

*(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement)*

The Superintendent or designee shall coordinate planning efforts for the ~~district's~~ LCOE's preschool program, transitional kindergarten program, and elementary education program to provide a developmental continuum that builds upon children's growing skills and knowledge.

*(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards)*

*(cf. 6170.1 - Transitional Kindergarten)*

The ~~district's~~ LCOE's program shall be aligned with preschool learning foundations and curriculum frameworks developed by the CDE which identify the knowledge, skills, and competencies that children typically attain as they complete their first or second year of preschool. The program shall be designed to facilitate children's development in essential skills related to language and literacy, mathematics, physical development, health, visual and performing arts, science, history-social science, English language development, and social-emotional development.

The ~~district's~~ LCOE's preschool program shall provide appropriate services to support the needs of English learners and children with disabilities.

*(cf. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education)*

*(cf. 6174 - Education for English Language Learners)*

The ~~district~~ LCOE shall encourage volunteerism in the program and shall communicate frequently with parents/guardians of enrolled children regarding their child's progress.

*(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance)*

To maximize the ability of children to succeed in the preschool program, the program shall support children's health through proper nutrition and physical activity and shall provide or make referrals to available health and social services as needed.

**PRESCHOOL/EARLY CHILDHOOD EDUCATION** (continued)

*(cf. 3550 - Food Services/Child Nutrition Program)*  
*(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness)*  
*(cf. 5141.31 - Immunizations)*  
*(cf. 5141.32 - Health Screening for School Entry)*  
*(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services)*

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that administrators, teachers, and paraprofessionals in ~~district~~ **LCOE** preschool programs possess the appropriate permit(s) issued by the Commission on Teacher Credentialing, meet any additional qualifications established by the Board, and participate in professional development opportunities designed to continually enhance their knowledge and skills.

*(cf. 4112.2 - Certification)*  
*(cf. 4112.4/4212.4/4312.4 - Health Examinations)*  
*(cf. 4112.5/4212.5/4312.5 - Criminal Record Check)*  
*(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)*  
*(cf. 4222 - Teacher Aides/Paraprofessionals)*  
*(cf. 4231 - Staff Development)*  
*(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)*

Preschool admissions policies and procedures shall be in writing and available to the public. Such policies and procedures shall include criteria designating those children whose needs can be met by the program and services, the ages of children who will be accepted, program activities, any supplementary services provided, any field trip provisions, any transportation arrangements, food service provisions, and a health examination requirement. (CCR 18105; 22 CCR 101218)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that subsidized preschool is provided to eligible families to the extent that state and/or federal funding is available and shall establish enrollment priorities in accordance with Education Code 8263 and 5 CCR 18106.

The Superintendent or designee shall recommend strategies to link the ~~district's~~ **LCOE's** preschool program with other available child care and development programs in the ~~district county~~ or community in order to assist families whose child care needs extend beyond the length of time that the ~~district's~~ **LCOE's** part-day preschool program is offered.

The Superintendent or designee shall develop and implement an annual plan of evaluation which conforms to state requirements. (5 CCR 18279)

The Superintendent or designee shall regularly report to the Board regarding enrollments in ~~district~~-**LCOE** preschool programs and the effectiveness of the programs in preparing preschoolers for transition into the elementary education program.

*(cf. 0500 - Accountability)*

*Legal Reference: (see next page)*

**PRESCHOOL/EARLY CHILDHOOD EDUCATION (continued)**

*Legal Reference:*

EDUCATION CODE

8200-8499.10 *Child Care and Development Services Act, especially:*  
8200-8209 *General provisions for child care and development services*  
8230-8233 *Migrant child care and development program*  
8235-8239 *California State Preschool Program*  
8240-8244 *General child care and development programs*  
8250-8252 *Programs for children with special needs*  
8263 *Eligibility and priorities for subsidized child development services*  
8263.3 *Disenrollment of families due to reduced funding levels*  
8300-8303 *Early Learning Quality Improvement System Advisory Committee*  
8360-8370 *Personnel qualifications*  
8400-8409 *Contracts*  
8493-8498 *Facilities*  
8499.3-8499.7 *Local child care and development planning councils*  
48000 *Transitional kindergarten*

HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE

1596.70-1596.895 *California Child Day Care Act*  
1596.90-1597.21 *Day care centers*  
120325-120380 *Immunization requirements*

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

18000-18434 *Child care and development programs, especially:*  
18130-18136 *California State Preschool Program*  
18295 *Waiver of qualifications for site supervisor*  
80105-80125 *Permits authorizing service in child development programs*

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

6311-6322 *Title I, relative to preschool*  
6319 *Qualifications for teachers and paraprofessionals*  
6371-6376 *Early Reading First*  
6381-6381k *Even Start family literacy programs*  
6391-6399 *Education of migratory children*

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42

9831-9852 *Head Start programs*  
9858-9858q *Child Care and Development Block Grant*  
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 22  
101151-101239.2 *General requirements, licensed child care centers, including:*  
101151-101163 *Licensing and application procedures*

*Legal Reference continued: (see next page)*

**PRESCHOOL/EARLY CHILDHOOD EDUCATION (continued)**

*Legal Reference: (continued)*

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 22 (continued)

101212-101231 *Continuing requirements*

101237-101239.2 *Facilities and equipment*

OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 45

1301-1310 *Head Start*

*Management Resources:*

CSBA PUBLICATIONS

*Expanding Access to High-Quality Preschool Programs*, 2008

*California Preschool Learning Foundations*

14-02 *Enrolling and Reporting Children in California State Preschool Programs*, April 2014

12-08 *Disenrollment Due to 2012-13 Budget Reduction for California State Preschool Programs*,  
Management Bulletin, July 2012

*Dream Big for Our Youngest Children: Final Report of the California Early Learning Quality  
Improvement System Advisory Committee*, 2010

*Preschool English Learners: Principles and Practices to Promote Language, Literacy, and Learning*, 2nd  
ed., 2009

*Prekindergarten Learning Development Guidelines*, 2000

*First Class: A Guide for Early Primary Education*, 1999

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS

*Good Start, Grow Smart*, April 2002

WEB SITES

CSBA: <http://www.csba.org>

California Association for the Education of Young Children: <http://www.caeyc.org>

California Children and Families Commission: <http://www.ccfcc.ca.gov>

California County Superintendents Educational Services Association: <http://www.ccsesa.org>

California Department of Education: <http://www.cde.ca.gov>

California Head Start Association: <http://caheadstart.org>

California Preschool Instructional Network: <http://www.cpin.us>

Child Development Policy Institute: <http://www.cdpi.net>

Cities, Counties, and Schools Partnership: <http://www.ccspartnership.org>

First 5 Association of California: <http://www.f5ac.org>

National Institute for Early Education Research: <http://nieer.org>

National School Boards Association: <http://www.nsba.org>

Preschool California: <http://www.preschoolcalifornia.org>

U.S. Department of Education: <http://www.ed.gov>

Policy  
adopted:

LAKE COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  
MARCH 2016

**PRESCHOOL/EARLY CHILDHOOD EDUCATION**

When approved by the California Department of Education (CDE) under the California State Preschool Program, the ~~district~~ LCOE may operate one or more part-day preschool programs in accordance with law and the terms of its contract with the CDE.

*(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development)*

The ~~district's~~ LCOE's preschool program shall include all required program components, as described in 5 CCR 18272-18281 and AR 5148 - Child Care and Development, for the educational program, the creation of a developmental profile for each child, staff development, parent involvement and education, community involvement, health and social services, nutrition, and program evaluation. (5 CCR 18271-28281)

**Minimum Hours/Days of Operation**

The ~~district's~~ LCOE's part-day preschool program shall operate a minimum of three hours per day, excluding time for home-to-school transportation, and for a minimum of 175 days per year unless otherwise specified in the program's contract. (Education Code 8235; 5 CCR 18136)

**Staffing Ratios**

The preschool program shall maintain an adult-child ratio of at least one adult for every eight children and a teacher-child ratio of at least one teacher for every 24 children. If the ~~district~~ LCOE cannot recruit a sufficient number of parents/guardians or volunteers to meet the required adult-child ratio, teacher aides shall be hired as necessary. (5 CCR 18135, 18290)

*(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance)*

*(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement)*

**Wraparound Child Care Services**

In accordance with its contract with the CDE, the ~~district~~ LCOE may offer full-day services to meet the needs of eligible families through a combination of part-day preschool and wraparound child care services that are offered for the remaining portion of the day or year following completion of the preschool services. Child care and development services offered through this program shall meet the requirements of general child care and development programs pursuant to Education Code 8240-8244. (Education Code 8239)

Wraparound services shall operate a minimum of 246 days per year unless otherwise specified in the contract. For this period of time, part-day preschool programs shall operate 175-180 days and general child care and development programs may operate a full day for the remainder of the year after the completion of the preschool program. (Education Code 8239)

**PRESCHOOL/EARLY CHILDHOOD EDUCATION** (continued)**Family Literacy Services**

When any ~~district~~ **LCOE** preschool program receives funding for family literacy services pursuant to Education Code 8238.4, the Superintendent or designee shall coordinate the provision of: (Education Code 8238)

1. Opportunities for parents/guardians to work with their children on interactive literacy activities, including activities in which parents/guardians actively participate in facilitating their children's acquisition of prereading skills through guided activities such as shared reading, learning the alphabet, and basic vocabulary development
2. Parenting education for parents/guardians of participating children to support their children's development of literacy skills, including, but not limited to, parent education in:
  - a. Providing support for the educational growth and success of their children
  - b. Improving parent-school communications and parental understanding of school structures and expectations
  - c. Becoming active partners with teachers in the education of their children
  - d. Improving parental knowledge of local resources for the identification of and services for developmental disabilities, including, but not limited to, contact information for the ~~district~~ **LCOE** special education referral
3. Referrals to providers of adult education and instruction in English as a second language as necessary to improve parents/guardians' academic skills

*(cf. 6200 - Adult Education)*

4. Staff development for teachers in participating classrooms that includes, but is not limited to:
  - a. Development of a pedagogical knowledge, including, but not limited to, improved instructional strategies
  - b. Knowledge and application of developmentally appropriate assessments of the prereading skills of children in participating classrooms
  - c. Information on working with families, including the use of on-site coaching, for guided practice in interactive literacy activities

**PRESCHOOL/EARLY CHILDHOOD EDUCATION** (continued)

- d. Providing targeted interventions for all young children to improve kindergarten readiness upon program completion

*(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)*

**Eligibility and Enrollment**

Children eligible for the district's LCOE's preschool program include those who will have their third or fourth birthday on or before September 1 of the fiscal year that they are being served. (Education Code 8208, 8235, 8236)

When a child is eligible for both the preschool program and the district's LCOE's transitional kindergarten program, the family may choose the most appropriate program for the child. In accordance with the enrollment priorities described below, the child may be enrolled in both programs provided that the child is not enrolled in both programs for the same time period on the same day.

*(cf. 5111 - Admission)*

*(cf. 6170.1 - Transitional Kindergarten)*

Eligibility for subsidized preschool shall be as follows:

1. Children shall be eligible for subsidized preschool services if their family is a current aid recipient, income eligible, or homeless and/or the family's children are recipients of protective services or have been identified as being, or at risk of being, abused, neglected, or exploited. (Education Code 8235, 8263, 8263.1; 5 CCR 18131, 18134)
2. Children shall be eligible for subsidized wraparound preschool and child care services if their family meets at least one of the criteria specified in item #1 above or needs child care services due to either of the following circumstances: (Education Code 8239, 8263)
  - a. The child is identified by a legal, medical, or social services agency or emergency shelter as a recipient of protective services or as being, or at risk of being, neglected, abused, or exploited.
  - b. The parents/guardians are engaged in vocational training leading directly to a recognized trade, paraprofession, or profession; are employed or seeking employment; are seeking permanent housing for family stability; or are incapacitated.

The Superintendent or designee shall consult the county's centralized eligibility list, when available, or shall maintain a district LCOE's waiting list in accordance with admission priorities. As vacancies occur, applicants shall be contacted in order of their priority. (5 CCR 18106)

**PRESCHOOL/EARLY CHILDHOOD EDUCATION** (continued)

First priority for enrollment in a preschool program shall be given to neglected or abused children age 3 or 4 years who are recipients of child protective services or who, based upon written referral from a legal, medical, or social service agency, are at risk of being neglected, abused, or exploited. If unable to enroll a child in this category, the ~~district~~ LCOE shall refer the child's parent/guardian to local resource and referral services so that services for the child can be located. (Education Code 8236; 5 CCR 18131)

*(cf. 1020 - Youth Services)*

*(cf. 1400 - Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies and the Schools)*

*(cf. 1700 - Relations Between Private Industry and the Schools)*

After all children with first priority are enrolled, the ~~district~~ LCOE shall give second priority to eligible children age 4 years who are not enrolled in a transitional kindergarten program prior to enrolling eligible children age 3 years. (Education Code 8236)

After enrolling all eligible children who meet the criteria for subsidized services, up to 10 percent of the program's enrollment, calculated throughout the entire contract, may be filled with children who exceed the age limitations and children whose family income is no more than 15 percent above the income eligibility threshold. (Education Code 8235; 5 CCR 18133)

The ~~district~~ LCOE may certify eligibility and enrollment up to 120 calendar days prior to the first day of the beginning of the preschool year. After establishing eligibility at the time of initial enrollment, a child shall remain eligible for the remainder of the program year. (Education Code 8237; 5 CCR 18082)

The ~~district's~~ LCOE's decision to approve or deny a child's enrollment shall be communicated to the family through a written Notice of Action mailed or delivered within 30 days from the date the application is signed by the parent/guardian. (5 CCR 18094, 18095, 18118)

*(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)*

Subsequently, the Superintendent or designee shall mail or deliver a Notice of Action to a parent/guardian at least 14 calendar days before any intended change in services, including, but not limited to, an increase or decrease in fees, an increase or decrease in the amount of services, or termination of services, due to any of the following circumstances: (5 CCR 18095, 18119)

1. A determination during recertification or update of the application that the need or eligibility requirements are no longer being met or the fee or amount of service needs to be modified
2. Failure of the parent/guardian to document the family's need or eligibility after the ~~district~~ LCOE requested such documentation in writing

**PRESCHOOL/EARLY CHILDHOOD EDUCATION** (continued)

3. An indication by the parent/guardian that he/she no longer wants the service
4. The death of a parent/guardian or child
5. The conclusion of a limited-term agreement, provided that the parent/guardian has been informed in writing of the date that the services would terminate

For each child enrolled in the ~~district's~~ **LCOE's** preschool program, the Superintendent or designee shall maintain a family data file containing a completed and signed application for services, documentation of income eligibility, and a copy of all Notices of Action. For each child not receiving subsidized services, the family data file shall also include records of the specific reason(s) for enrolling each child, the child's family income, and evidence that the ~~district~~ **LCOE** has made a diligent search for children eligible for subsidized services. (5 CCR 18130, 18133, 18081, 18084)

*(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records)*

*(cf. 3580 - District Records)*

*(cf. 5125 - Student Records)*

**Fees and Charges**

Fees for participation in the ~~district's~~ **LCOE's** preschool program shall be assessed and collected in accordance with the fee schedule established by the Superintendent of Public Instruction. (Education Code 8273, 8273.2; 5 CCR 18078)

*(cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges)*

However, no fee shall be charged to an income-eligible family whose child is enrolled in a part-day preschool program, a family that is receiving CalWORKs cash aid, or a family that is otherwise exempted pursuant to Education Code 8273.1. (Education Code 8273.1; 5 CCR 18110)

In addition, any family qualifying for subsidized preschool on the basis of having a child who is a recipient of child protective services, or having a certification by a county child welfare agency that services continue to be necessary, may be exempt from these fees for up to 12 months. Any family whose child is receiving subsidized preschool on the basis of being at risk of abuse, neglect, or exploitation may be exempt from these fees for up to three months, unless the family becomes eligible based on receipt of child protective services or certification of need by a county child welfare agency. The cumulative period of exemption for these purposes shall not exceed 12 months. (Education Code 8273.1)

**PRESCHOOL/EARLY CHILDHOOD EDUCATION** (continued)

The Superintendent or designee shall establish a process which involves parents/guardians in determining whether to require parents/guardians to provide diapers. This process shall also be used to determine whether and how much to charge parents/guardians for field trip expenses, within the limit specified in law. A child shall not be denied participation in a field trip due to the parent/guardian's inability or refusal to pay the fee, and no adverse action shall be taken against a parent/guardian for that inability or refusal. (Education Code 8273.3)

**Disenrollment**

When necessary due to a reduction in state reimbursements, families shall be disenrolled in the following order: (Education Code 8236, 8263.3)

1. Children age 3 years whose families have the highest income in relation to family size shall be disenrolled first, followed by children age 4 years whose families have the highest income in relation to family size.

At each age level, if two or more families have the same income ranking, the child with disabilities shall be disenrolled last. If there are no families that have a child with disabilities, the child who has received services the longest shall be disenrolled first.

2. Families of children age 3 or 4 years who are receiving child protective services or who have been documented to be at risk of being neglected, abused, or exploited, regardless of income, shall be disenrolled last.

Regulation  
approved:

LAKE COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  
MARCH 2016

**STUDENT USE OF TECHNOLOGY**

The County Board of Education intends that technological resources provided by the district be used in a safe and responsible manner in support of the instructional program and for the advancement of student learning. All students using these resources shall receive instruction in their proper and appropriate use. ~~For purpose of this policy and associated regulation, the term *district* may refer to the County Office of Education.~~

- (cf. 0440 - District Technology Plan)*
- (cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites)*
- (cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media)*
- (cf. 4040 - Employee Use of Technology)*
- (cf. 6163.1 - Library Media Centers)*

Teachers, administrators, and/or library media specialists are expected to review the technological resources and online sites that will be used in the classroom or assigned to students in order to ensure that they are appropriate for the intended purpose and the age of the students.

The Superintendent or designee shall notify students and parents/guardians about authorized uses of ~~district~~ LCOE technology, user obligations and responsibilities, and consequences for unauthorized use and/or unlawful activities in accordance with this Board policy and the ~~district's~~ LCOE's Acceptable Use Agreement.

~~District~~ LCOE technology includes, but is not limited to, computers, the ~~district's~~ LCOE's computer network including servers and wireless computer networking technology (wi-fi), the Internet, email, USB drives, wireless access points (routers), tablet computers, smartphones and smart devices, telephones, cellular telephones, personal digital assistants, pagers, MP3 players, wearable technology, any wireless communication device including emergency radios, and/or future technological innovations, whether accessed on or off site or through district-owned or personally owned equipment or devices.

Before a student is authorized to use ~~district~~ LCOE technology, the student and his/her parent/guardian shall sign and return the Acceptable Use Agreement. In that agreement, the parent/guardian shall agree not to hold the ~~district~~ LCOE or any ~~district~~ LCOE staff responsible for the failure of any technology protection measures or user mistakes or negligence and shall agree to indemnify and hold harmless the ~~district and~~ ~~district~~ LCOE and LCOE staff for any damages or costs incurred.

- (cf. 6162.6 - Use of Copyrighted Materials)*

The ~~district~~ LCOE reserves the right to monitor student use of technology within the jurisdiction of the ~~district~~ LCOE without advance notice or consent. Students shall be informed that their use of ~~district~~ LCOE technology, including, but not limited to, computer files, email, text messages, instant messaging, and other electronic communications, is not private and may be accessed by the ~~district~~ LCOE for the purpose of ensuring proper use. Students have no reasonable expectation of

**STUDENT USE OF TECHNOLOGY** (continued)

privacy in use of the ~~district~~ LCOE technology. Students' personally owned devices shall not be searched except in cases where there is a reasonable suspicion, based on specific and objective facts, that the search will uncover evidence of a violation of law, ~~district~~ LCOE policy, or school rules.

*(cf. 5145.12 - Search and Seizure)*

The Superintendent or designee may gather and maintain information pertaining directly to school safety or student safety from the social media activity of any ~~district~~ LCOE student in accordance with Education Code 49073.6 and BP/AR 5125 - Student Records.

*(cf. 5125 - Student Records)*

Whenever a student is found to have violated Board policy or the ~~district's~~ LCOE's Acceptable Use Agreement, the principal or designee may cancel or limit a student's user privileges or increase supervision of the student's use of the ~~district's~~ LCOE's equipment and other technological resources, as appropriate. Inappropriate use also may result in disciplinary action and/or legal action in accordance with law and Board policy.

*(cf. 5125.2 - Withholding Grades, Diploma or Transcripts)*

*(cf. 5144 - Discipline)*

*(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)*

*(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))*

The Superintendent or designee, with input from students and appropriate staff, shall regularly review and update procedures to enhance the safety and security of students using ~~district~~ LCOE technology and to help ensure that the ~~district~~ LCOE adapts to changing technologies and circumstances.

**Internet Safety**

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all ~~district~~ LCOE computers with Internet access have a technology protection measure that protects against access to visual depictions that are obscene, child pornography, or harmful to minors and that the operation of such measures is enforced. (20 USC 6777; 47 USC 254; 47 CFR 54.520)

To reinforce these measures, the Superintendent or designee shall implement rules and procedures designed to restrict students' access to harmful or inappropriate matter on the Internet and to ensure that students do not engage in unauthorized or unlawful online activities.

*Harmful matter* includes matter, taken as a whole, which to the average person, applying contemporary statewide standards, appeals to the prurient interest and is matter which depicts or describes, in a patently offensive way, sexual conduct and which lacks serious literary, artistic, political, or scientific value for minors. (Penal Code 313)

**STUDENT USE OF TECHNOLOGY** (continued)

The district's LCOE's Acceptable Use Agreement shall establish expectations for appropriate student conduct when using the Internet or other forms of electronic communication, including, but not limited to, prohibitions against:

1. Accessing, posting, submitting, publishing, or displaying harmful or inappropriate matter that is threatening, obscene, disruptive, or sexually explicit, or that could be construed as harassment or disparagement of others based on their race/ethnicity, national origin, sex, gender, sexual orientation, age, disability, religion, or political beliefs

*(cf. 5131 - Conduct)*

*(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying)*

*(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)*

*(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment)*

*(cf. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior)*

2. Intentionally uploading, downloading, or creating computer viruses and/or maliciously attempting to harm or destroy district LCOE equipment or materials or manipulate the data of any other user, including so-called "hacking"
3. Distributing personal identification information, including the name, address, telephone number, Social Security number, or other personally identifiable information, of another student, staff member, or other person with the intent to threaten, intimidate, harass, or ridicule that person

The Superintendent or designee shall provide age-appropriate instruction regarding safe and appropriate behavior on social networking sites, chat rooms, and other Internet services. Such instruction shall include, but not be limited to, the dangers of posting one's own personal identification information online, misrepresentation by online predators, how to report inappropriate or offensive content or threats, behaviors that constitute cyberbullying, and how to respond when subjected to cyberbullying.

*Legal Reference: (see next page)*

## STUDENT USE OF TECHNOLOGY (continued)

### Legal Reference:

#### EDUCATION CODE

49073.6 Student records; social media

51006 Computer education and resources

51007 Programs to strengthen technological skills

60044 Prohibited instructional materials

#### PENAL CODE

313 Harmful matter

502 Computer crimes, remedies

632 Eavesdropping on or recording confidential communications

653.2 Electronic communication devices, threats to safety

#### UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 15

6501-6506 Children's Online Privacy Protection Act

#### UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

6751-6777 Enhancing Education Through Technology Act, Title II, Part D, especially:

6777 Internet safety

#### UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 47

254 Universal service discounts (E-rate)

#### CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 16

312.1-312.12 Children's Online Privacy Protection Act

#### CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 47

54.520 Internet safety policy and technology protection measures, E-rate discounts

#### COURT DECISIONS

New Jersey v. T.L.O., (1985) 469 U.S. 325

### Management Resources:

#### CSBA PUBLICATIONS

Cyberbullying: Policy Considerations for Boards, Policy Brief, July 2007

#### FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION PUBLICATIONS

How to Protect Kids' Privacy Online: A Guide for Teachers, December 2000

#### WEB SITES

CSBA: <http://www.csba.org>

American Library Association: <http://www.ala.org>

California Coalition for Children's Internet Safety: <http://www.cybersafety.ca.gov>

Center for Safe and Responsible Internet Use: <http://csriu.org>

Federal Communications Commission: <http://www.fcc.gov>

Federal Trade Commission, Children's Online Privacy Protection:

<http://www.ftc.gov/privacy/privacyinitiatives/childrens.html>

U.S. Department of Education: <http://www.ed.gov>

ALSO INCLUDE OUR EXISTING AR 6163 (a) - (c) BEFORE E 6163.4

Policy  
adopted:

LAKE COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  
MARCH 2016

**STUDENT USE OF TECHNOLOGY**

**ACCEPTABLE USE AGREEMENT  
AND RELEASE OF ~~DISTRICT~~ LCOE FROM LIABILITY (STUDENTS)**

The Lake County Office of Education authorizes students to use technology owned or otherwise provided by the COE as necessary for instructional purposes. The use of COE technology is a privilege permitted at the COE's discretion and is subject to the conditions and restrictions set forth in applicable Board policies, administrative regulations, and this Acceptable Use Agreement. The COE reserves the right to suspend access at any time, without notice, for any reason.

The COE expects all students to use technology responsibly in order to avoid potential problems and liability. The COE may place reasonable restrictions on the sites, material, and/or information that students may access through the system.

Each student who is authorized to use COE technology and his/her parent/guardian shall sign this Acceptable Use Agreement as an indication that they have read and understand the agreement.

**Definitions**

*COE technology* includes, but is not limited to, computers, the COE's computer network including servers and wireless computer networking technology (wi-fi), the Internet, email, USB drives, wireless access points (routers), tablet computers, smartphones and smart devices, telephones, cellular telephones, personal digital assistants, pagers, MP3 players, wearable technology, any wireless communication device including emergency radios, and/or future technological innovations, whether accessed on or off site or through COE-owned or personally owned equipment or devices.

**Student Obligations and Responsibilities**

Students are expected to use COE technology safely, responsibly, and for educational purposes only. The student in whose name COE technology is issued is responsible for its proper use at all times. Students shall not share their assigned online services account information, passwords, or other information used for identification and authorization purposes, and shall use the system only under the account to which they have been assigned.

Students are prohibited from using COE technology for improper purposes, including, but not limited to, use of COE technology to:

1. Access, post, display, or otherwise use material that is discriminatory, libelous, defamatory, obscene, sexually explicit, or disruptive
2. Bully, harass, intimidate, or threaten other students, staff, or other individuals ("cyberbullying")

**STUDENT USE OF TECHNOLOGY** (continued)

3. Disclose, use, or disseminate personal identification information (such as name, address, telephone number, Social Security number, or other personal information) of another student, staff member, or other person with the intent to threaten, intimidate, harass, or ridicule that person
4. Infringe on copyright, license, trademark, patent, or other intellectual property rights
5. Intentionally disrupt or harm COE technology or other COE operations (such as destroying COE equipment, placing a virus on COE computers, adding or removing a computer program without permission from a teacher or other COE personnel, changing settings on shared computers)
6. Install unauthorized software
7. "Hack" into the system to manipulate data of the COE or other users
8. Engage in or promote any practice that is unethical or violates any law or Board policy, administrative regulation, or COE practice

**Privacy**

Since the use of COE technology is intended for educational purposes, students shall not have any expectation of privacy in any use of COE technology.

The COE reserves the right to monitor and record all use of COE technology, including, but not limited to, access to the Internet or social media, communications sent or received from COE technology, or other uses. Such monitoring/recording may occur at any time without prior notice for any legal purposes including, but not limited to, record retention and distribution and/or investigation of improper, illegal, or prohibited activity. Students should be aware that, in most instances, their use of COE technology (such as web searches and emails) cannot be erased or deleted.

All passwords created for or used on any COE technology are the sole property of the COE. The creation or use of a password by a student on COE technology does not create a reasonable expectation of privacy.

**Personally Owned Devices**

If a student uses a personally owned device to access COE technology, he/she shall abide by all applicable Board policies, administrative regulations, and this Acceptable Use Agreement. Any such use of a personally owned device may subject the contents of the device and any communications sent or received on the device to disclosure pursuant to a lawful subpoena or public records request.

**Reporting**

If a student becomes aware of any security problem (such as any compromise of the confidentiality of any login or account information) or misuse of COE technology, he/she shall immediately report such information to the teacher or other COE personnel.

**STUDENT USE OF TECHNOLOGY** (continued)

**Consequences for Violation**

Violations of the law, Board policy, or this agreement may result in revocation of a student's access to COE technology and/or discipline, up to and including suspension or expulsion. In addition, violations of the law, Board policy, or this agreement may be reported to law enforcement agencies as appropriate.

**Student Acknowledgment**

I have received, read, understand, and agree to abide by this Acceptable Use Agreement and other applicable laws and COE policies and regulations governing the use of COE technology. I understand that there is no expectation of privacy when using COE technology. I further understand that any violation may result in loss of user privileges, disciplinary action, and/or appropriate legal action.

Name: \_\_\_\_\_ Grade: \_\_\_\_\_  
(Please print)

School: \_\_\_\_\_

Signature: \_\_\_\_\_ Date: \_\_\_\_\_

**Parent or Legal Guardian Acknowledgment**

*If the student is under 18 years of age, a parent/guardian must also read and sign the agreement.*

As the parent/guardian of the above-named student, I have read, understand, and agree that my child shall comply with the terms of the Acceptable Use Agreement. By signing this Agreement, I give permission for my child to use COE technology and/or to access the school's computer network and the Internet. I understand that, despite the COE's best efforts, it is impossible for the school to restrict access to all offensive and controversial materials. I agree to release from liability, indemnify, and hold harmless the school, COE, and COE personnel against all claims, damages, and costs that may result from my child's use of COE technology or the failure of any technology protection measures used by the COE. Further, I accept full responsibility for supervision of my child's use of his/her access account if and when such access is not in the school setting.

Name: \_\_\_\_\_ Date: \_\_\_\_\_  
(Please print)

Signature: \_\_\_\_\_

Exhibit  
version:

LAKE COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  
MARCH 2016

**ALSO INCLUDE AR 6163 (a) - (c)**